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Channel 4 is like no other media organisation - commercially
funded with a public service remit to foster creativity, diversity
and innovation in its programmes and services at no cost to
tax-payers or licence fee-payers. This combination of cultural
and commercial objectives has created one of the world’s most
distinctive and admired television channels; the UK’s leading
independent film company and one of the most enduring and
potent media brands.

Channel 4's dedication to innovative and quality content attracts to the core channel
a discerning audience of particular appeal to advertisers. This audience regards
Channel 4 as its channel, and is also the audience that is most likely to adopt digital
television, the internet and interactive services, so that Channel 4 is well placed
among UK media companies to take advantage of these new media platforms.

The launch of E4 and the continued success of FilmFour demonstrate Channel 4's
strategy of building new cross-platform brands based on core reputations to serve
the changing demands of our audience. Channel Four Interactive is also taking these
core reputations and building them into destinations and businesses of real value on
the internet, backed by the strength of these brands on other platforms, Channel 4's
marketing expertise and its long tradition of creative excellence.

The commitment to innovate has also led Channel 4 to explore the potential of new
platforms in a more effective and imaginative way than its competitors. The success
of Big Brother last summer illustrated how traditional and new media - planned and
developed together — can create genuinely innovative and successful programming
across multiple platforms. The same imaginative cross-platform approach is brought
to Channel 4's multicultural and educational output.

In recognition of the changing nature of its business, Channel 4 has established a
new subsidiary — 4 Ventures. While this incorporates all new channels and interactive
services, it will also act as the corporate entity through which future new product
development, joint ventures and alliances can be considered. The creation of

4 Vlentures will help protect and enhance the core channel at a time of rapid change
in the market.

The aim is to ensure that Channel 4's creativity and brand values remain as vital
and salient in the next ten years of convergence as they have been in the last ten
years of broadcasting and that the core channel continues to be the foundation on
which we build.
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ALl G FOR PM’

‘AT LEAST CHANNEL 4 IS DOING SOMETHING
TO KEEP ALIVE THAT PRECIOUS HABIT
OF DISTRUSTING THOSE IN AUTHORITY

AND THINKING FOR YOURSELF.'

'WHEN CHANNEL 4
DOES A TEST MATCH,
BOY DOES CHANNEL 4

DO A TEST MATCH.”

'‘BIG BROTHER HAS COMPLETED
THE CHANNEL'S TRANSFORMATION
FROM AN ECCENTRIC OUTSIDER TO A
POWERFUL PIONEER AT THE HEART

OF BRITISH BROADCASTING.

'SHOCK! HORROR!
THE MAIL NOW
LOVES CHANNEL 4.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Vibrant, brimming with creative energy

It works because as a corporation with no shareholders it can
take greater creative risks with its programmes, attracting viewers
sought after by advertisers, and then recycling the profits directly
back into programmes and new services. Itis a major cultural
asset for a culturally diverse Britain, commercially financed
without public funding. No wonder The Times recently described
it as 'a British experiment in broadcasting, envied and admired
throughout the world.’

Most would see this report of our activities in 2000 as a compelling
argument for maintaining our current status. However we are
engaged in a privatisation debate, with the Conservative Party
making an election pledge to sell off the channel while
maintaining its public service remit by regulation.

Whilst welcoming the Conservatives’ recognition of Channel 4's
distinctive role, we made a rapid and robust rebuttal of their
proposal, pointing out that privatisation would inevitably divert
substantial funds into dividends to shareholders and possible
spectrum charges, and would fundamentally change the
channel's distinctive character. We were grateful that our
view was powerfully endorsed by the Independent Television
Commission (ITC) and many media commentators.
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In private hands, Channel 4 would no longer be such a stimulus
to Britain’'s creative economy, with economics dictating that

it would work with far fewer than the hundreds of independent
producers whose programmes it transmits annually. Maost
importantly, it would be forced to reduce creative risk, drifting
towards safe and formulaic programming and in the process
diminishing consumer choice.

ITC

We are grateful for the [TC's continued support for Channel 4, and
welcome the ITC's positive assessment of Channel 4's performance
in 2000 when they said ‘the channel succeeded not only in building
the size of its audience in a very competitive market, but in delivering
its remit for programmes that are diverse and distinctive’.

FUTURE STRATEGY
Our strong and consistent opposition to privatisation does not
imply resistance to change.
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remain a salient commercial force

and a pioneer of the public service values

of innovation, diversity and crea
The new mixed economy of pay TV, free-to-air and online services
demands a careful reiteration of the channel’s role and structure.
As part of our emerging strategy, we decided, during 2000, to group
all our secondary businesses into a single company, 4 Ventures [see
page 28), so that we can finance and develop them more effectively

whilst strengthening the central importance of the core channel.



4 Ventures, which will have its own representative on the
Channel 4 Board, will help us to diversify the corporation’s
revenue base - an essential safeguard as the advertising sales
market changes and consolidates. The new channels and services
under 4 Ventures will work together with Channel 4’s core channel
to ensure the most original ideas from the creative community
are reflected across our different output.

We see 4 Ventures as a vital element in building Channel 4's
presence in multi-channel and digital homes and ensuring, in
the words of the Government’s White Paper on Communications,
that public service broadcasting has ‘an even more important
role” in the digital age than it has now.

RESULTS FOR 2000

The financial results for 2000 were encouraging and are set out
from page 38. The operating profit for the year was £33.8 million,
areduction from E44.9 million in 1999. This reflects Channel 4's
increased but modest investment in diversification, which
amounted to 4% of turnover.

CURRENT TRADING

The television advertising sales market has shown an uncertain
start in 2001, with an overall decline in the first quarter, reflecting
1o some extent the strong revenues from dot.com advertising in
the same period of 2000. Despite this, Channel 4 has achieved
revenue growth in this first quarter, but uncertainties remain over the
rest of calendar year 2001. The competition for audiences is fierce.

FilmFour channel continues to grow in line with expectations, and
E4 launched well on 18 January 2001 and is meeting its targets.

COMMUNICATIONS WHITE PAPER

Qur evolving strategy was vindicated by the Government'’s
Communications White Paper which, while it gave a strong vote
of confidence to Channel 4's present performance and structure,

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

CREATIVE ENERGY

also indicated the Government’s recognition that broadcasting
is undergoing fundamental change. We welcomed the proposal
for a single regulator, the continued commitment to public service
broadcasting, and the proposals for self-regulation that will give
the Board greater freedom and respansibility to interpret the public
service remit in an increasingly competitive and complex environment.

SUPPLIERS AND STAFF

Our editorial and commercial success is built on our staff,
and suppliers in the independent production sector, who make
Channel 4 the most singular and sought-after brand in British
media. Each year our debt to them grows. Everyone who
contributed to the most fruitful and eventful year in Channel 4s
history should feel proud of their involvement and | would
like to thank them, on behalf of the Board, for their hard work,
creative inspiration and commitment to Channel 4 and its ethos.

o o

VANNI TREVES
Chairman

9 April 2001
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT

For me the success of 2000 for Channel 4 was its clarity of
purpose. As the Royal Television Society’s Fleming Lecturer
for 2000, | likened managing a modern media company to being
a ‘map maker in an earthquake zone'. While some of our rivals
show signs of losing their way, Channel 4 has never lost sight
of who our viewers are and what they want and expect from us.

The Channel 4 schedule was studded with programmes that broke
through the mundane and formulaic nature of most modern
television to capture the public’s imagination. Ali G, The Day the
World Took Off, Trigger Happy TV, Test Cricket, Black Books,
White Tribe, Never Never, Generation Sex, Dispatches, Jam and
many others reinforced Channel 4's reputation as the home of
innovative, distinctive event television. Big Brother was the media
phenomenon of the year. Behind the scenes it was a hugely complex,
multi-platform project which, in the words of one national newspaper,
marked the moment when ‘the internet came of age in Britain.

The benefits of Channel 4's not-for-profit structure have never
been clearer. Our dividend to viewers is greater creative risk,

a higher proportion of income invested back into programmes
and services and a far more diverse range of programmes than
other commercial broadcasters. Channel 4 engages an audience
that is young-in-spirit with public service values and makes those
values relevant in the modern world. We do more to sustain the
creative economy than other broadcasters, by commissioning our
output mainly from independent producers. And now we do all
this across multiple media platforms.
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The converged media world is full of surprises, and especially
full of challenges for Channel 4 as we re-think our role in the
light of the changes going on. We can have only a limited future as
a single television channel. At our launch in 1982 we were one
amongst four; now Channel 4 is one of 200 available in the 36%
of British households that are already digital and multi-channel.

4 VENTURES

If we are to maintain our salience in that fast-growing multi-channel
environment and bring the values of innovative, culturally diverse
programming to a new generation of viewers who, to a great
extent, are passing traditional public service broadcasting by,
then we not only need to invest to maintain the quality of the
main channel but also we have to extend the range and creative
quality of what we offer. This we are now beginning to do. Our new
digital entertainment channel, E4, available in nearly seven million
households, had the highest rating programme on any multi-
channel service on its launch night and promises to follow the
success of FilmFour channel which, with almost half a million
subscribers, is itself being expanded from one channel to four.

In their start-up phase these new services reguire investment.
In the longer term they will help keep the profile of Channel 4
visible and the public service alive. They will also allow us to



diversify our revenue base, something we must consider as the
advertising market enters a period of uncertainty, with the
possibility, when competition policy allows, of further cansolidation
of the [TV companies.

Along with our burgeoning initiatives in interactivity, broadband and
online services we have grouped our new television services into a
new company, 4 Ventures [see page 28], which was established at
the start of 2001. That company now also houses our film production
and distribution company, FilmFour Ltd, which, while it continues
to develop new talent with its Lab and multicultural talent initiatives,
has raised its game, and the ambitions of the whole industry, by
entering into major co-production alliances with the German
‘company Senator, Spain’s Alta and Hollywood's Warner Bros.

COMMERCIAL AND CULTURAL

Channel 4's commercial success over the last two years has allowed
us to build new services and brand strength, but we cannot assume
the future will be so favourable. The diversity of the schedule, the
fulfilment of the remit, the success of our education services [now
representing £70 million of annual expenditure on-screen, online
and in print), our support for hundreds of independent production
companies and our extensive industry training and development
‘programmes — all these essential elements of Channel 4's identity
‘and purpose are dependent on winning audiences in sufficient
numbers to pay our way. Drama, news, current affairs, cutting-edge
‘entertainment and most of our multicultural output do not do
so. If, as we wish, they are to continue at the heart of what we do
- and what we represent — then we have to invest and diversify. The
‘combination of commercial and cultural entrepreneurship, that has
been at the heart of our success as a television channel, must now
be scaled up to meet the challenge of a wider media environment.

THE FUTURE
‘Channel 4 has to survive and compete within the disciplines
‘of the commercial market. It is testament to the creative skills

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT

MAKING WAVES

of our commissioning teams and supplier companies, and thanks
to the extraordinary energy of our advertising sales team, that
we are well positioned for the coming years.

At the very end of the year the Government’s White Paper on the
future of communications provided a ringing vote of confidence in

Channel 4 and accorded us a central role in the development and
re-invention of creativity, innovation and diversity in the digital age.
We look forward with confidence and enthusiasm to fulfilling that role.

l’ltu(_/ﬁ-x./l

L O P

’

MICHAEL JACKSON
Chief Executive

9 April 2001
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. | We aim to be a place of individual authorghip,-a consistent source
1 of surprise, invention and brainfood. We are for viewers who expect
| to be challenged, provoked and entertained by new ideas and new

i taj,ent who want programmes that are worth watching. The following
¥ review of our programming in 2000 (pages 10 to 25) shows that
i Channel 4 is delivering on its promise to viewers with the broadest

- and most interesting schedule of any broadcaster in Britain.







DOCUMENTARIES

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

DOCUMENTARIES

By allowing a sense of individual authorship, linked with
campaigning commitment, Channel 4 has continued to produce
the kind of contemporary documentary programmes which have
all but vanished from other channels. Some of the results have
made for uncomfortable but compelling viewing. Leo Regan’s
highly personal film on racism 100% White documented the lives
of a group of neo Nazis he had phatographed ten years before.
Another programme in the feature-length documentary strand
True Stories was Babitsky's War, one of a series of three films
on Putin’s Russia, and a powerful account of the kidnapping
of a Russian journalist in Chechnya by the Russian Army after he
exposed too much about the horrors of war in that region. And in
Mr Death, Errol Morris told the extraordinary story of an American
engineer’s attempt to prove that the Holocaust never happened.

Cutting Edge lived up to its name with a series of sharp and
energetic films on life in Britain today, including Paul Watson's
A Wedding in the Family and Penny Woolcock's The Five Of Us,
set in a household of people living with learning difficulties.

Fifteen helped re-define modern British culture with a series that

gave a troublesome, interrogative voice to emerging young Britain.

Faking It gave its subjects the chance to become somebody else

10 | Channel Four Television Corporation

and cleverly combined the popular and the intelligent whil
tackling contemporary social issues.

Slavery was a campaigning feature-length documentary from
the makers of The Dying Rooms about the growth of the modern
slave trade. As a result of the programme, a working party
was set up by the cocoa industry to attempt to eradicate slavery
from its production processes. A Very British Murder was a
major series exploring contemporary British murder cases,
which included the first on-camera interview with Tony Martin,
the Norfolk farmer who murdered a burglar in his home.

The Gambler followed inveterate chancer Jonathon Rendall
on a global gambling spree. The Man Who Bought Mustique
was a humarous partrait of the irascible Lord Glenconner
returning to the Caribbean island of Mustique to hold court
with Princess Margaret.

In 2000 Channel 4 launched Alt tv, a peaklime initiative
to find the next generation of factual programmes and
documentary filmmakers.



THE YEAR IN REVIEW

FEATURES

Nigella Bites

FEATURES

Channel 4 put renewed emphasis in 2000 on finding documentary
subjects within popular culture and was rewarded with two of the
most talked about programmes of the year. In Victoria's Secrets,
Victoria Beckham turned interviewer in the rarefied world of
celebrity and wittingly, or unwittingly, offered an insight into

y aspects of fame. The programme was Channel 4's
fourth highest rating programme of the year with 4.6 million

s. Coked Up was a short season of programmes looking
t the prevalence of cocaine use within madern, British saciety.
srated debate

Nigella Lawson was launched as a fully-fledged face of Channel 4
with her own show Nigella Bites and promptly became an
omnipresent media personality. Driven, in its third series, broke
through the two million audience barrier and regularly beat its
established rival Top Gear. It is now regarded by the industry

as the motor show to watch.

A new consumer property show Location, Location, Location
debuted with a strong first series, and She's Gotta Have It

h impetus from a new presenter, Jayne Middlemiss,
and a new peaktime stot

galned fr

27 )
AR

Time Team proved its enduring popularity and maintained its

audience share in an increasingly competitive market to become
one of Channel 4's top 30 rated programmes in 2000, Time Team
also produced four days of live archaeology from Canterbury over
the August Bank Holiday weekend and successfully established
a new Time Team documentary strand with The Mystery of Mine
Howe and The Mystery of Seahenge. Both performed well in peak,
as did various Time Team specials.

Can You Live Without...? was a first-time collaboration between
Channel 4's Features and Current Affairs departments, which
investigated whether people could cope without the "essentials’
of everyday life including make-up, cars and TV. Celebrity Frock
Ups launched a new genre in archive programming and was one
of Channel 4's top 20 programmes of the year, proving that
half-hour programmes can still punch through in an increasingly
competitive schedule

In daytime, both newly commissioned property show

A Place in the Sun and Great Estates proved consistently
popular and earned an outing in the peaktime schedule.
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Channel 4’s current affairs output was at the
aforefront of the best tele\nsmn Journaus i

'scored some notable hits, exposing British \i
pilots drinking to excess before flying pa
flights in Flying Under The Influence. T
coverage from the programme prompt

the shame of the brutal North Korean regim
is abandoning its children to starvation, di
and even cannibalism.
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Coverage of international affairs was also preminent
on Channel 4 in 2000. In August the channel found
itself bound up in a major political international
incident when a camera crew from Insight News,
filming in Liberia for Sorious Samura’s Africa -
the centrepiece of Channel 4’s Africa season -

was arrested and thrown in jail on the instructions
of President Charles Taylor. After a week of
diplomatic activity and international pressure, the
four men were released and returned to recount
their captivity at a press conference at Heathrow.

The Africa season also featured The Hunger Busin
looking at the failures of lnternatlonal ald programmes

 interview with her rnat €
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contribution to the _successful

on and a campaigning'season on
- ption was also broadcast at the start of the year.
" For the third year running Channel 4 put New Labour
under the spotli e annive of the party’s
ascent to power a ck Cohen's ’s New Boy

Network was the sta

nd-out political prugrarn e of the
year. Cha , also gained exclusive access to William
Hague for. lmg profile, Just'W'lllam . and Ffion.

‘Sundays, making it the

only serious news programme on British telev’ision

seven days a week. Audiences sponded with . 5%
year-on-yea% ease in the p ramme s rat|

The success of Channel 4 News""és televi._-,;ion's ; #
fastest growing news butletin was built on'the

strengthyand determination‘of its journalism.
The team was consistently ahead of the story with s

adding,an extra by

its reporting and analysis of ke ries such as
the fuel crisis and the causes of th - Hatfield rail
disaster. It covered the last days of 14-year-old
CJD victim, Zoé Jeffries, and gained an exclusive

r elerl on the eve of

" Innovation was a q‘lstlnctwe part afkg!:he bulletin's %&
appeal in 2000, with Naomi Klein's visually arresting

25 minute film-on global brandlng provoking debate




DRAMA

"
THE YEAR IN REVIEW

Never Never

DRAMA

In the multi-channel environment, new and original drama, on
all channels, has a hard task breaking through to capture the
attention of a wide audience. Channel 4 drama has been at its
most successful when it has sought a distinctive and individual
voice rather than easy ratings.

Charles Sturridge’s two-part adaptation of Dava Sobel's bestselling
book, Longitude, with a renowned cast led by Michael Gambon
and Jeremy lrons, brought to life this extraordinary true story

of adventure, intrigue and power on the high seas of 18th century
England. Longitude stood out as a truly innovative piece of drama
and a television event.

Another highlight of the year was Tony Marchant's gritty two-part
drama Never Never, which dealt with the harsh, and usually
unseen, realities of debt on an ordinary housing estate in Britain.

The department also tackled the classics as well as more
contemporary fiction. David Blair's direction gave an adaptation
of Tolstoy's classic novel Anna Karenina a very contemporary feel,
following the narrative through the vast panorama of 19th century
Russia - from the decadent social milieu of St Petersburg’s palaces
to the hard simplicities of rural life.

14 | Channel Four Television Corporation

North Square took a fresh, witty and irreverent look at the
legal profession and won many fans for its colourful portrayal
of a group of highly paid, fiercely competitive and not always
scrupulous young barristers. Queer as Folk 2 gave a slightly
different view of today’s 20 and 30-somethings in a two-part
special, which picked up with the Canal Street boys where
the original series left off.

In collaboration with 4Later the drama department brought
together the best of the country’'s new writing and directing talent
in Dogma TV - a brand new series of raw, funny and edgy low
budget films which took the Danish Dogme filmmakers” manifesto
as inspiration. The series proved that Channel 4 can successfully
provide representation to a wide range of new voices.

Brookside celebrated its 18th birthday with an improved ratings
performance and some good story lines. Hollyoaks also passed
a landmark during 2000 - completing its fifth year on air - and
has become one of the mainstays of the Channel 4 schedule,
combining massive appeal for the 16 to 34-year-old audience
with much-admired treatment of tricky social issues.



THE YEAR IN REVIEW

ENTERTAINMENT

So Graham Norton

Da Ali G Show

ENTERTAINMENT

Channel 4's commitment to finding the next generation of comic
falent paid dividends in 2000 with the launch of four brand-new
series to instant acclaim.

The highlight of an outstanding year for the entertainment
department was the phenomenal impact of Ali G, with
Sacha Baron Cohen's comic creation graduating to front his
awn vehicle, Da Ali G Show, which secured some of the best
ratings of the year. Despite giving just one interview — to the
Staines and Egham News - Ali G became the year's most
written about television character, proveking an outbreak

of Gangsta patois in the national press and a rash of Tommy
Hilfiger-clad lookalikes.

Equally gratifying were the ratings and critical success of
Trigger Happy TV, fronted by Dominic Joly and reinventing
Candid Camera for a new generation. Peter Kay, another
graduate of Channel 4's new talent showcase, The Comedy Lab,
reiealed his huge potential in That Peter Kay Thing, which was
judged Best New Comedy at the British Comedy Awards for its
sharp but affectionate portrayal of northern life. Black Books,
to-written by and starring Dylan Moran, was that rare thing - a
sitcorn that made the reviewers (and the viewers| laugh.

\

Chris Morris delivered his latest insight into the human condition
in Jam, a dark comedy widely acknowledged as an original and
groundbreaking piece of television.

So Graham Norton continued as the lynchpin of Channel 4's
Friday night schedule - a triumph of ratings and a reinvention
of the talk show. Top 10s delivered similar success on Saturday
nights by mining a rich vein of nostalgia.

Channel 4 also scored notable hits with younger audiences, with
Shipwrecked kicking off the reality TV phenomenon early in the
year. T4 became television's premier brand for teenagers and
at the start of 2001 added early Friday evenings and Saturday
lunchtimes to its regular Sunday morning slot.

Music continued to grow in stature and airtime en Channel 4
with 4Music the only regular, credible music programming on
terrestrial TV. A number of entertainment specials throughout
the year, including David Blaine, Rory Bremner, 100 Greatest TV
Moments and John Lennon Night, reinforced the range and quality
of comedy and entertainment output

Channel Four Television Corporation | 15



CARIBBEAN SUMMER

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

CRICKET JUST

GOT BETTER

The buzz is back in English cricket. The
revitalised performance of the national team
has coincided with revitalised television
coverage on Channel 4. Channel 4 has helped
rekindle the public’'s enthusiasm for cricket,
with concerts, events, eye-catching promotions,
grassroots and schools initiatives and great
television coverage all helping to introduce
new fans to the joys of the summer game.

A chorus of questions greeted Channel 4's acquisition of the
rights to Test match cricket in 1998, with critics lining up to ask
how the traditional image of the game was consistent with the
channel's remit to be different. By the end of a compelling
summer of cricket and Caribbean culture last year, the doubts
had been replaced by praise from all quarters.

Marketing Week led the way: ‘When Channel 4 wrested the cricket
rights from the BBC two years ago, it not only introduced new
ways of covering the game, but also promised to help market
cricket to a new, younger and more multicultural audience. This
season - the second - has shown that promise coming to fruition.’

Innovation was again at the heart of Channel 4’s coverage of the
five match Test series against the West Indies in 2000, with the
production and commentary team once more winning plaudits for
their technological wizardry and fresh but knowledgeable approach
to the game. During the year, Channel 4's Test Cricket coverage
picked up a BAFTA for Best Sports Coverage, two Royal Television
Society awards and a variety of other prizes. But true to the spirit
on which all its successes have been built, Channel 4 added
another dimension to its coverage of the nation’'s summer game.

Inspired by the West Indian visitors’ love of cricket and music,
Channel 4 devised a series of events and initiatives to supplement
its televised coverage. For the first time, live concerts were held
in the Test match grounds during the lunch intervals. Reggae band
Third World showed the way to the other Caribbean music acts
that followed, with a lively performance in front of the members’
pavilion at Lord's.

Channel 4 also created a carnival atmosphere outside the Test
cricket grounds, with 12,000 people attending a party and concert
on Clapham Common and enjoying live music as well as coverage
of the Oval Test match via giant screens. Bob Marley’s band,

The Wailers, played to a full house at London’s Astoria. The mood
was captured by bold off-air marketing, including a memorable
poster that repainted the Union Jack in the Rastafarian colours
of red, gold and green.
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As part of its commitment to bring new, young audiences to
the game, Channel 4 toured the country with its Beach Cricket
Roadshow. Over 26,000 children around the country took part in
this grassroots programme and received coaching from, among
others, the West Indies players themselves. Channel 4 also
sponsored a project to create a new inner-city cricket facility

in the London Borough of Lambeth.

In partnership with the England and Wales Cricket Board, Channel 4
has launched a £2 million Community Cricket initiative, giving a
fresh spin to the game for primary and secondary school girls
and boys, including dozens of inter-school tournaments. One-day
workshops in inner-city schools and classroom packs have allowed
teachers to use cricket scores, teamwaork, the histary of the game
and the geography of cricketing nations in a variety of lessons.
Special roadshows across the country combined music with
screenings of matches, while on television, fast bowler Darren Gough
presented two series of his Cricket Academy for young players.

Also on screen, Channel 4 dedicated a week of programming to
all things Caribbean. Rebel Music was a definitive documentary
on the life and work of Bob Marley with unseen footage and new
tracks; Dancehall Queens followed British dancehall fans as they
travelled to soak up the Jamaican dancehall scene; and in Trouble
in Paradise, Darcus Howe returned to the country of his birth to
deliver an uncompromising state-of-the-nation assessment,

The reward for Channel 4's imaginative investment in the
Caribbean Summer was a 42% share of the viewing audience
during Test match cricket coverage and 70% of the ABC1 male
market. Channel 4's dedicated website cricket4.com notched
up seven million page views during August.

Caribbean Summer showed Channel 4 at its best = bold, innovative,
exuberant and truly cross-platform. It turned a traditional sport
into a modern cultural event that sprang out of the schedules

in the quiet television days of summer and hooked an army of
new cricket fans.

The Wailers



CARIBBEAN SUMMER




ARTS AND MUSIC

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

ARTS AND MUSIC

Channel 4 continued to build its reputation as a major patron
of cultural life in Britain with a new initiative to showcase
architecture alongside its arts and literary coverage of the
Turner and Booker prizes. A series of documentaries on

the buildings nominated for the RIBA Stirling Prize in 2000
culminated in a Channel 4 sponsored awards ceremony with
viewers invited to cast votes for their favourite building via
channel4.com. The Shock of the Old, Piers Gough's idiosyncratic
guide to the story of architecture, provided the channel with
another distinctive voice. His mixture of authority and fun was
quintessentially Channel 4.

Following the success of This is Modern Art in 1999, Channel 4
again cleared its Sunday night schedules for another major,

authored arts series. Howard Goodall's Big Bangs rose to the
challenge of exploring the complexities of musical history and
theory in a way that invited the audience in, but did not dumb
down, and was rewarded with a powerful critical response.

Alain de Botton explored how the teaching of great thinkers
can make people happier in Philosophy: A Guide to Happiness.

Directed by Oscar winner Kevin Macdonald, Humphrey Jennings:

The Man Who Listened To Britain, grew out of the filmmaker’s
personal passion for the subject matter and jumped off the
screen as a result.
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Howard Goodall's Big Bangs

g

Starstruck was a witty and engaging series on the pleasures and
pitfalls of the acting profession, showing it is possible to make
arts programmes with genuine audience appeal that retain
intelligence and style. In Movie Virgins two very different tyro
filmmakers struggled to break through into cinematic success.

In 2000 Channel 4 was at the forefront of original live arts
programming, encouraging fresh and filmic ways of bringing
performance to the screen. Andrea Andermann’s groundbreaking
version of La Traviata was filmed live in real Parisian locations
and scheduled across a weekend. Zoé, an opera performed by
teenagers, was aimed boldly at a young audience and illustrated
Channel 4’s continuing commitment to new music and new talent.
Channel 4 scored another major coup by bringing the acclaimed
Royal Shakespeare Company’s production of Macbeth to the small
screen using a hand-held documentary style of filmmaking that
emphasised the rawness of the play.

Our arts coverage was endorsed by the ITC, who stated in their
review of our performance: ‘given the difficulty of attracting
audiences to the arts on television, the channel's achievements
in 2000 were impressive’.
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HISTORY, RELIGION AND SCIENCE

Living on Light

HISTORY

The major history event of the year was Elizabeth, presented
by David Starkey, which attracted audiences of more than three
million and provoked front-page comment as a result.

The Holocaust on Trial blended drama, analysis and testimony
of victims to place in context the arguments surrounding
historian David Irving's controversial views of the Holocaust.
Made while his libel trial was proceeding and shown shortly
after, it was a commission only Channel 4 would have had the
courage to undertake and which went to the heart of the best
[V history - helping us understand how we got here.

Wallis Simpson: The Demonised Duchess, The Real Queen Mother
and Crawfie, The Nanny Who Wouldn't Keep Mum, formed a
three part series marking the Queen Mother's 100th birthday

in characteristically angular Channel 4 style.

When Money Went Mad transposed the story of the 18th century's
South Sea Bubble financial disaster against current anxieties
about dot.com mania and was one of the most original history
programmes of the year.

RELIGION
As television moves towards greater self-regulation, Channel 4
has looked for new ways of addressing issues of spirituality,

measuring what we do in terms of impact rather than hours,
aiming for programmes whose scale and approach make them
stand out in the schedules and hold the attention of viewers.
One such was James Runcie’s My Father, a frank and intimate
portrait of the former Archbishop of Canterbury, Lord Runcie,
filmed only weeks before his death. Witness contributed some
distinctive one-off films to the schedule including The Cult That
Couldn’t Stop Killing and Living on Light.

SCIENCE

One of the most stylistically innovative programmes of the
year, The Day the World Took Off, employed a team of historical
investigators to explore the origins of the Industrial Revolution
and Britain’s role within it.

Neanderthal captured press attention by bringing to life the language,
rituals and habits of man’s closest ancestral relative. Escape from
Colditz covered the wartime history of the notorious Prisoner of
War camp and set modern day army recruits the task of replicating
the inmates’ celebrated escape attempts. Scrapheap Challenge
returned with its combination of adventure and technological challenge.

Anatomy of Disgust explored the essence of the most powerful of human

feelings while the Royal Institution’'s Christmas Lectures made their
debut on Channel 4 with Professor Kevin Warwick’s Rise of the Robots.
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With the benefit of hindsight, Big Brother may look to have been
asure-fire winner from the start, but in truth it represented a
significant risk for Channel 4. The channel's reward for staying

true to its spirit of innovation and committing itself fully to the
experiment was to create the TV event of the year and the ultimate
srample of talked about television.

The format was in-many ways the simplest aspect of Big Brother.
Ten people in @ house for nine weeks, their every move - almost -
captured by a sophisticated multi-camera set up, with one member
of the house voted out each week by the viewers at home and

the last one standing collecting a £70,000 prize. But the logistics
nvolved in turning that idea into some 50 episodes across 63 days,
with 24-hour live webcasts throughout, required months of
preparation and constant monitoring.

Asite was secured in Bromley by Bow, the house was built, miles
of cable were laid, a studio built on site and a production team of
more than 150 was hired by the producer, Endemol UK. Over 40,000
neople applied to be in the Big Brother house - after regional
auditions and a series of rigorous tests a shortlist was chosen.

The introductory shiow on 18 July peaked at 4.1 million viewers
[20% share of the available audience) between 9 pm and 10 pm,
with subsequent weekday episodes at 11 pm settling in with
audiences of around three million viewers. But press interest
inthe show - fed by a 24-hour hotline - was already growing out
ofall proportion to the initial ratings. A huge word of mouth effect
was also building up behind Big Brother as viewers followed every
move in the house via the Big Brother website. Within a week
ithad become the UK’'s most popular site, averaging 2.5 million
page impressions per day.

These factors collided on 17 August, when Big Brother’s most
compulsive character ‘Nasty’ Nick Bateman was evicted for cheating.
The website recorded 7.5 million page impressions and a world

record jump for an individual site as viewers watched the day's events
unfolding live on the internet. Nick's antics were splashed across

the front page of every national newspaper the day after — excluding
The Financial Times, which devoted most of page 3 in its next edition.

After 6.9 million viewers tuned in to see Nick's post eviction
interview on 18 August the ratings never looked back and peaked
at 9.9 million during the final show. 38 million people watched
Big Brother at least once and an average of 4.7 million [26.3%
of the available audience in the timeslot] watched each episode.
Nearly 80% of 16 to 34-year-olds tuned in to the show at least
once. Big Brother broke records online and off-screen with more
than 200 million page impressions — making it Europe’s number
one website — and 7.4 million people voting in the final phone poll
between Anna, Darren and the eventual winner, Craig, making it
the biggest ever UK televote.

Beyond the numbers, Big Brother reinforced Channel 4s
position as a pioneering broadcaster. By being unpredictable, risky,
ambitious, engaging and interactive it was broadly recognised
as the first mass appeal, interactive, cross-media concept.

The programme will be remembered as one of the most
integrated producer/broadcaster projects ever embarked upon.
For Channel 4, the press and publicity department deployed
every member of staff and handled more than 15,000 calls from
UK and international journalists. The commissioning team moved
to the production site; the legal team, advertising and commercial
development, marketing and engineering, information systems
and Channel Four Interactive all collaborated closely with their
counterparts at Endemol UK and the production team to ensure
the project’s success.

The last word must go to The Guardian. ‘Big Brother has completed

Channel 4's transformation from an eccentric outsider to a powerful
pioneer at the heart of British broadcasting.’
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homeworkhigh.com
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4 LEARNING

In 2000 Channel 4 undertook a root and branch review of its
education policy and provision. The result was the creation

of a new internal division, 4 Learning, bringing together all
the channel's educational interests and activities - the schools’
programme service, schools’ publishing, stand-alone websites
and programme support for adult education programmes.

This organisational development is enabling 4 Learning to
move towards a fully multi-media future, using new ideas and
technologies to give more people a window on a bigger world.
[t will also ensure that all of Channel 4's education activities
are infused with the same sense of purpose.

That purpose was clear across the full range of Channel 4’s
educational output in 2000. The channel's innovative approach
helps many young people and adults overcome the barriers they
feel stand between them and educational achievernent. Most of all,
Channel 4 believes it has a particular role in assisting people at
times of transition in their lives. Not only does the channel produce
five of the top ten primary schools programmes, it also supports
young people who are leaving school, becoming sexually active,
getting a job. These choices and dilemmas are a cue for Channel 4

to be imaginative, ambitious and useful in its education proposition.
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Launched in January 2000, homeworkhigh.com was one of
Channel 4's most significant successes in any medium during the
year. Offering 9 to 16-year-olds online help with their homewark,
the service now regularly receives more than two million hits
each week. homeworkhigh.com is the only free online homework
service that guarantees answers to accepted guestions by the
end of the session. Over 100 gualified teachers work across
six subjects offering expert help in real time, but encouraging
children to work out their own solutions. The service has built up
a databank of 35,000 previously answered questions that can be
accessed at any time. The website has become the most talked
about homework help service and won many prestigious awards
in 2000 including a BAFTA for Best Online Education site.

In 2000, a new stand-alone website, channel4.com/brilliantcareers,
was launched to help introduce people to work in the creative
industries. As well as factual information the site gives access
to digital mentors and profiles of creative industry experts to
inspire and educate.

The channel's Generation Sex season of programmes focused
on the knowledge gap in British sex education. Online - and
confidentially - teenagers were able to put questions to qualified
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4 LEARNING

Stop, Go Home

The Day the World Took Off

advisers on the issues that concerned them. Some 850,000 leaflets
e distributed in schools and in popular teen magazines, and

\ajor awards.

trun edt

channel

cation programming and won over 20
ions are not confined to certain

educational ambiti
t inform every part of its editorial output.

genres or formats, b

Dramas like Never Never, dealing with debt and loan sharks,
arstary lines in Brookside, all add to and are informed by the

hannel's outreach

titude to learning. Some of the ¢
work is linked to programmes not traditionally thought of as

', like a multi-million pound investment in inner-city
grassroots cricket, and trailblazing series such as Generation Sex
and The Day the World Took Off

Ith continued to be another major area for Channel 4's
education work across all media in 2000. Responding to the
fact that the British work longer hours than anyone else in

' - the Stop, Go Home season examined a stressed-out
ion with work. The channel also tackled Eating

s|l-received season of programmes, which included

Disorders in a
The Real Lena Zavaroni, Diet Diaries and Three Thin Ladies.

Generation Sex

Working with new technology Channel 4 can now respond
s in the way that suits the learner, whatever

to learning nee
age. Through a multi-media service of television programmes,
online resources, CD-ROMs [and, shortly, DVD-ROMs] the

channel combines ambition and expertise to create winners such
as Number Crew, Maths 4 Real and Your Family Counts
of a campaign which established 4 Learning as a major influence
in the teaching and learning of mathematics, both in the formal

all part

education sector and in improving numerical skills for adults.
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Freak Out
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NATIONS AND REGIONS

Channel 4 continued to make substantial progress in 2000 in its
work in the nations and regions of the UK, investing £102 million
in ariginal production outside London and transmitting programmes
supplied by 153 regional campanies.

To emphasise this commitment to production outside London,

three prime-time series — Football Stories, Public Enemy Number 1

and Hidden Love - were ring-fenced for producers with a base
outside the M25. A Very British Murder, an anthology strand on
crime, showed how stories from a local landscape could inform
and enrich the network.

Three dramas stood out as having major regional significance.
The return of Queer as Folk captured gay lifestyle against the
backdrop of post-industrial Manchester. The Secret Life of
Michael Fry presented a unique if controversial portrait of life
in mid-Wales. And the legal series North Square was set in the
aspirational Leeds of today. The continuing success of Mersey
Television’'s Hollyoaks and Brookside delivered more than
500 jobs in Liverpool in 2000

A number of the channel's major popular factual strands were
made outside London such as Location, Location, Location from
Glasgow-based |deal World and Embarrassing Illnesses by
Maverick in Birmingham
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Channel Four Interactive joined forces with the Nations and
Regions team to host ‘Cross Creative’, a two-day laboratory

in Glasgow bringing games developers, web designers and

TV producers together to discuss their cross-platform ambitions
with broadcasters. Channel 4 has already taken a few of these
projects further. 4car.co.uk - a joint venture with |deal World -
is proving to be a popular online destination for car enthusiasts
and a joint venture for games on mobile media was struck with
the Dunfermline-based WAP producer, Digital Bridges

MULTICULTURAL

A key part of Channel 4's commitment to reflecting the diversity
of modern British life is its multicultural output. In recent years,
the channel has sought to infuse all aspects of its programming
with a multicultural perspective and enjoyed success in that
respect last year with The Richard Blackwood Show from
entertainment and the Caribbean Summer season accompanying
the West Indies cricket tour

Notable programmes on specific issues of race included Darcus
Howe's White Tribe, a provocative and incisive polemic on what

it means to be white in multicultural, post-devolution Britain, and
The Difference, a groundbreaking series exploring the latest research
into links between race and genetics. Both typified the channel's
reputation for anqular and risk-taking factual programmes.
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DIVERSITY

The Richard Blackwood Show

Channel 4 again led other television companies in the Campaign
for Racial Equality's Race In the Media Awards, picking up three
prizes including Best Drama for Nightshift, a drama devised in
gonjunction with Asian teenagers in Birmingham.

To comme

morate Black History Month 2000, Channel 4's Untold
season looked al the little explored contributions of black and
Asian Britons to major events in this country’s history, through
aseries of programmes including Extraordinary Ancestors.
Communities from across the UK investigated the histories

of their own areas to create the first ever online black and Asian
history map of Britain on Channel 4's website. Key discoveries
Wwere the subject of short films.

DISABILITY

The year 2000 was notable for the growth in opportunities for
fisabled talent — both on and off screen. Freak Out, a new factual
entertainment series, was presented by Mat Fraser and Ash Atalla,
and employed a disabled researcher and director. The half-hour
documentary Your Voice Your Vote was presented by leading
disabled campaigner, Simone Aspis.

Access All Areas was a night of programmes both featuring
and made by disabled people. It included Forbidden Pleasures,
researched by disabled writer and presenter Lara Masters;

Two Crippled Heroes, a film starring two disabled kung-fu actors;
and three short films by disabled animators.

Disabled people were employed across all disability programmes
but also made an impact in other programming. Channel 4 News
carried three substantial reports presented by wheelchair user
Andrew Slorance.

Off-screen, Channel 4 further expanded the Four All database

- fourall.org - linking producers with disabled performers,
producers and craft professionals, and employed a new part-time
Deaf Adviser.
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TALENT

region and community of Britain.

In 2000, Channel £ supported 30 initiatives designed to find, develop
and celebrate talent, both on and off-air. These had a combined
value of more than £3 million and included: MESH, the first national
scheme to develop new talent in computer generated digital
animation; So You Think You're Funny’, a competition to find the
thest new stand-up comedy talent in the UK; and ‘Cross Creative’,

3 pioneering programme of workshops for new media companies
inScotland. Channel 4 alsa supported more than a dozen schemes
for developing scriptwriting and comic talent, on and off-air, four
‘major animation programmes, and a series of development and
preduction deals aimed at ethnic minority filmmakers.

Channel 4 reqularly sponsors cultural events that aim to discover
and showcase talent across different creative areas. Some of
tfiese are major events, which make a substantial contribution to
Brifain's cultural life, such as the Turner Prize and the Edinburgh
International Film Festival. But they include smaller, cutting-edge
\8ients ranging from the Canongate Literary Prize for new writing,
0 Fashion East, a show of the best four up-and-coming fashion
Wesigners held during London’s Fashion Week, and FilmiFundas,
launigue festival of the work of young Indian film directors.

[astyear Channel 4 also co-funded 30 industry-wide training
Inifiatives. These included specialist courses for deaf and disabled
‘rainees, bursaries for students in creative and craft disciplines
related to all forms of media, and a variety of experimental
Jdigital labs

iBhannel 4 is a major sponsor of The Research Centre for Television
Land Interactivity, which is run from its Glasgow office. In 2000 one
"0t lts most successful schemes was the Researcher Development
WProject - funded in partnership with the producers’ association PACT
=Which invested £300,000 in 12 successful regional companies in

Talent is the lifeblood of television, as it is for all creative industries. With its reputation
and its public service remit both resting on its ability to be innovative and distinctive,
Channel 4 keeps talent development at the heart of all it does. Channel 4's aim is to
be ‘the R&D lab of the creative economy’, nurturing new talent and new ideas in every

order to improve their research and development. As a result of the
scheme, £3.5 million of new network commissions have been won
by the selected production companies. In 2001 there are plans for
Channel 4 to become the sole sponsor and to extend the project
to 16 companies, increasing its scope and broadening its range to
encourage more ethnic diversity. The scheme has also been refined
to specifically benefit producers in Northern Ireland. In September,
four companies benefited from a Channel 4-led initiative to iImprove
network production in the region, in partnership with Northern
Ireland’s leading ecenomic development agency LEDU.

IN-HOUSE TALENT

This wide ranging commitment to identifying and building talent
around the country is mirrored by systematic attention to the guality
of Channel 4's own staff and the need to open up career opportunities
that help them and the channel grow. In 2000 Channel 4 became
the first major broadcaster to achieve the Government approved
Investors In People standard, in recognition of its commitment to
improved staff training and development. During the year Channel 4
provided more than 1,450 training courses, ranging from Deatf
Awareness to Negotiation Skills. A new, revamped intranet site
providing news, information and online learning modules for staff;
a new policy of funding study leave; and the Step4ward career
development programme for assistants, are further examples

of Channel 4’s commitment to its in-house talent.

SUPPORTING VIEWERS

Channel 4 also supports the talent and ambitions of its viewers
and service users. In 2000 Channel 4 operated 140 separate
programme-related websites giving viewers information and advice
and, altogether, ran 350 learning-related projects in support of
particular programmes. The Time Team Club is one of the biggest
history societies in the UK.
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The following pages (30 to 37) contain
a report of the activities in 2000 of
Channel 4's new media businesses.
Segmental analysis of these businesses
can be found on pages 49 and 50 in

the financial section of this report.

As well as managing Channel 4's
existing businesses - the FilmFour

and E4 channels, FilmFour Ltd,

Channel Four Interactive, Channel Four
International and Commercial Development
— 4 Ventures will also develop new ones
based on Channel 4's care purpose,
designed to strengthen and extend the

Channel 4 is a multi-channel, multi-platform media business
with free-to-air and pay TV channels, online and mobile serwces
a film production and distribution company, a print publishe
and an international distribution subsidiary. 4 Ventures is the
holding company for all Channel 4's businesses other than the
main channel, 4 Learning and 124 Facilities.

Channel 4 brand. The company will have

its own Managing Director, who will also

sit on the Channel 4 Board.

The creation of 4 Ventures is the next
stage of Channel 4's strategy to transform
from a single television channel into a
network of media businesses on a range
of platforms. This strategy is parallel

to those adopted by the BBC, ITV and

‘BSkyB in response to the rapid spread of

digital technology, which is transforming
television and opening up new means of
distributing content. In a universe of 200
channels, Channel 4 has a declining

future as a single, terrestrial- oniy
network. It must grasp the opportunities
presented by d|g|tal te[ewsmn‘ interactivity,

broadband and the internet, if the

Channel 4 brand is to remain as visible
and relevant in the next ten years as
it Is now.

By consolidating these business activities
into one company, they can be managed
more aggressively to ensure that targets
are surpassed and that they become

a net cash contributor to Channel 4,

moderating the competitive pressures
of the digital era.

CHANNEL FOUR TELEVISION CORPORATION

|

CHANNEL FOUR TELEVISION

4 VENTURES Ltd

4 124 Facilities Ltd

4 Learning

Channel Four
Interactive

[J Ultimate holding entity

[ Division

[0 Wholly-owned trading subsidiary of
Channel Four Television Corporation

B Wholly-owned trading subsidiary of
4 Ventures Ltd

| | FilmFour
channel
| | E4 Commercial B
Development
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Lucky Break
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'he production slate in 2000 helped
FilmFour deliver on its strategic aim of
working with more established and proven
film talent and funding bigger budget films
of greater ambition. Star names signed

o FilmFour's productions in 2000 included
Cate Blanchett, Billy Crudup and Gillian
Armstrong [Charlotte Gray]; Peter Cattaneo
[Lucky Break]; lan Holm [Emperor’s New
Clothes); Andie MacDowell [Crush]; and
Joaquin Phoenix, Ed Harris, Scott Glenn
and Anna Paguin (Buffalo Soldiers).

The raising of FilmFour's profile has been
matched by improved working relationships
with overseas partners, who are helping

to co-finance and distribute the company's
films worldwide. The key development in
this respect in 2000 was the establishment
of a relationship with US studio Warner Bros,
which will be distributing Charlotte Gray

in North America and with whom FilmFour
has formed a partnership for further projects.
Universal also picked up many of the
rest-of-the-world rights on Charlotte Gray,
FilmFour's most expensive film to date.
FilmFour's long-term output relationship with
Senator in Germany continued to work well

In 2000 FilmFour made further strides
towards its goal of achieving worldwide
distribution for its films, especially in the
most difficult market — the USA. To assist
its US production and distribution business
the company opened an office in Los Angeles
based on the Warner Bros lot. This is
expected to contribute significantly in 2001
to finding US partners and in sourcing new
projects and finance for films

FilmFour's UK distribution arm had

a difficult year theatrically and despite
considerable effort there was no break
out hit on a par with 1999. As a result,
the company recorded a loss of £3 million
in 2000, compared with a profit of

£0.5 million in 1999. The real success
story in 2000 was in video distribution
and DVD rental. FilmFour had a 5.2%
share of the video rental market (up from
1.8% in 1999] - its highest ever figure.
East Is East led the way, heading the
weekly charts and becoming the fourth

most frequently rented of all films
released in 2000. In the independent titles
top 10 for the year, FilmFour had nine
titles. FilmFour was awarded the status
of Video Distributor of the Year at the 2000
RIVA awards, the first time this award has
been given to a non-major.

On the awards front FilmFour garnered
nominations and prizes across the wc
There were 131 nominations for 24 different
films and 33 prizes. Notable results
included Dancer in the Dark, winning two
awards at the Cannes Festival (Best Actress
and Best Film] and three at the European
Film Awards [Best Actress, Best Director
and Best Film]. East Is East picked up

a total of nine awards including Best Film
at the Evening Standard Awards and the
Alexander Korda award for the year's
outstanding British Film at BAFTA. Red Violin
won an Oscar for best original score.

A major initiative in 2000 was the launch of
Spirit Dance UK - a joint venture with Forest
Whitaker's US company Spirit Dance. The
company’s purpose is to develop and make
feature films with British ethnic minorit
This partnership, with someone of such
stature in the film business, will encourage
and develop the talents that undoubtedly lie
in the UK's black and Asian communities.

=

Six low budget feature films were
committed to in 2000 mostly through the
FilmFour Lab initiative, all of which involved
first time directors and some with first time
producers. Two of these, Jump Tomorrow
and My Brother Tom, have already been
rewarded with selection for the Sundance
and Rotterdam festivals in 2001.

Another new talent initiative was launched
through the commissioning of 30 one-minute
digital short films, made by musicians and
artists, as well as by established filmmz :
Artists of the calibre of Michael Stipe and
Howie B have contributed and the films
premiere on the filmfour.com website.

- rour [
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FILMFOUR CHANNEL

Hilary and Jackie

The channel recorded some exceptional
viewing figures during the year thanks
to its continued strong emphasis on
British and non-formulaic films together
with a commitment to- more challenging
and controversial material, foreign
language films and shorts. Highlights
in 2000 included the television premieres
of Human Traffic and the award winning
FilmFour productions Elizabeth and
Hilary and Jackie, and the month of
November devoted to extreme cinema
including Ai No Corrida, Driller Killer
and The Texas Chainsaw Massacre.

FilmFour was launched in November 1998
ed business plan thal
projected a total maximum investment
of £64 million and breakeven by 2005.

to date and latest projections
annel 4confident of meeting
hese targets, so that the film channel
will become a net cash contributor.

Losses of £20 million in 1999 reduced

with a fully c
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s than £15 million in 2000, and are
cast to decline to £11 million in 2001
and £7 million in 2002

In April 2001, FilmFour launched three
new digital services — a time-shifted
version of the existing channel and two
themed channels dedicated to extreme
and world cinema. These three new
FilmFour channels will be provided

to subscribers for no additional

FilmFour contributes to the funding
of Channel 4’s film production business
and promotes the take-up of digital
television. To this end, more than

£15 million of the total £66 million 0
investment will contribute to film

production and more than £13 million

will contribute to Channel 4's cost of

operating its digital terrestrial multiplex.

will be financed within FilmFour's

erall business plan and projectior

FilmFour is proving to be one of the
most successful channels on the ONdigital
platform and, in the move towards digital,
in 2000 it ceased analogue transmissions
on satellite and Telewest. Channel 4
undertook arrangements with those
platform operators for FilmFour channel
to be used as a digital only incentive

to encourage customers to switch from
analogue to digital television.




E4is provided at no additional cost to basic
multi-channel subscribers. Part of the
¢ tier on all digital platforms, E4 will

ly as much on advertising as platform
subscription fees to pay its way.

d on 18 January 2001, E4 required
ths of collaboration and planning, with
departments from across Channel 4 involved
nits conception alongside the dedicated

pay TV team. The channel burst on air

15 pm with opening links from Ali G
and an exciting new programme genre in

the form of interactive game show Banzai.
[tscored a remarkable 1.5% share of viewing
inmulti-channel homes on its first night,
topping Sky One with the highest rating
grogramme on a multi-channel service for

share of viewing in multi-channel homes).
- |

B4 was launched with a business
nlan that projects maximum total net
nvestment of £80 million [E£42 million

of which will be incurred in 2001, reducing
to £20 million in 2002 and profitability

by 2005). The channel represents a major
investment in new talent and entertainment
programming, with a programme budget
of more than £40 million in its first year
and £13 million annual spend on original
commissions — a 25% increase in Channel 4's
commissioning spend on prime time
entertainment. Through E4 commissions
in 2001 Channel 4 is also doubling its new
entertainment output.

Like FilmFour, E4 is operated as a fully
costed, separate business and aims

to drive the take-up of digital television
in UK homes.

Offering the same, distinctive brand

of cutting-edge entertainment pioneered
over the last two decades by Channel 4,
E4 is the next logical step in Channel 4's
cross-platform strategy. It will protect
and develop the Channel 4 brand in an

increasingly fragmented and competitive
television landscape and reinforce
Channel 4's reputation as the home

of cutting-edge entertainment and

the best new comic talent

Channel Four Television Corporation | 33



Cheltenham Gold Cup

At the start of 2000, in partnership
with cable operator ntl, Channel 4
bid against BSkyB for all media rights
to the 'Super 12" group of leading
racecourses. This Channel 4-led
consortium won a period of exclusive
negotiation with those 12 courses
but that deal could not be concluded
because it did not gain acceptance
by the whole racing industry.

In November, Channel 4 re-entered
the fray as part of the Go Racing
consortium alongside former rival BSkyB
and racecourse-owner Arena Leisure plc.
The joint venture was pitched against
Carlten Communications, a late entrant
to the bid battle which was waged long
and very publicly before the Racecourse
Association (RCA] recommended to its
59 members that they enter a period

of exclusive negotiation with Go Racing.
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At the time of writing this report, Go Racing
was in advanced negotiations with the RCA
and anticipating issuing a rights contract
to Britain's 5% racecourses.

Together with our consortium partners,
BSkyB and Arena, Channel 4 aims to build
Go Racing into a major business, developing
new revenue streams through interactive
betting on television and online. In addition
to normal annual rights fees for its main
channel coverage, Channel 4's proposed
financial commitment to Go Racing’s
funding is £23 million.

Go Racing represents an exciting opportunity
to develop Channel 4's longstanding
coverage of British racing.



4HOMES

THE EDGE OF THE EDGE

The online highlight of 2000 was the success of the Big Brother website, which
Channel Four Interactive steered from its inception through innumerable technical
and creative challenges. For the nine weeks of the show, the site was Europe’s most
visited destination, generating more than 200 million page impressions.

Channel 4 also transmitted its first television
and web simulcast, with Show Me the Money
being simultaneously available for viewing
on both media. The online trading game
associated with the show was a great success
for channel4.com and proved how interactive
platforms can take television viewers into
deeper relationships with programming.

Together with E-world, Channel Four
Interactive and the Commercial Development
department have created a leading destination
on the internet for car enthusiasts. The site
is focused on providing useful information

fo consumers purchasing a new or used
vehicle and now delivers two million page
impressions per manth and supports
Channel 4's motoring programmes. Offering
a blueprint for other online ventures,
4ear.co.uk is operated as a joint venture with
E-world, a subsidiary of Ideal World which
produces Driven and Deals on Wheels.

Other notable events last year included
the launch of cricket site, cricket4.com.

The focus for Channel Four Interactive
in 2000 was building a solid foundation
for the future. Channel Four Interactive
has made a significant investment in
the development of a technical platform
that will support its operation and
launch of businesses in the online,
interactive television, broadband and
mobile arenas.

2001 is a key year for launching and
establishing Channel Four Interactive
businesses online. e4.com is a
standalone entertainment destination.
The relaunched filmfour.com extends
the FilmFour brand online to become
a significant film portal. 2001 will see
the launch of innovative interactive
television content.

Revenue generation for these interactive
sites is the top priority for 2001. Exploiting
opportunities in advertising, sponsorship,
e-commerce [on web, television and
mobile platforms), content syndication
and pay-per-view will be on Channel Four
Interactive’'s agenda.

In 2000, Channel 4 invested £15 million
in its interactive activity. This will rise
to £23 million in 2001. Whilst small

in relation to its competitors, that
expenditure is carefully focused and has
delivered significant success and impact.

In a market of considerable dot.com
uncertainty, Channel 4's ability to
harness terrestrial television to create
new cross-platform brands and events
will become increasingly important.
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4 Play - The Samuel Beckett Season

Cinderella
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Tap selling programmes of the year included
the original eight-part series of Queer as
Folk. which was also remade during 2000 for
US cable channel Showtime: Anna Karenina:
Channel 4 Schools’ innovative 90-minute
version of Cinderella, directed by Beeban
Kidron and starring Kathleen Turner;

and two episodes of True Bible Stories:
Sodom & Gomorrah and The Lost Ark

of the Covenant.

Channel Four International also continued
to broaden its sales portfolio to include
rights to third party programming as well
as one-offs, series and serials that have
appeared on Channel 4. [n 2000, Channel
Four International was the international
sales agent for several [TV dramas and
also represented a strand of biographies
r

now has a number of international strategic
partnerships with networks and mec
companies worldwide, including Discovery
and A&E, and the company’s first
co-production deal with US network NBC.

Channel Four International scored a coup
by securing international distributior
rights to the 19 plays of Samuel Beckelt,
which have been produced for television
by Irish state broadcaster, RTE, in a majt
co-production partnership with Chan

In 2000, Channel Four International showed
other distributors the way forward in
marketing and client relations, by creating
and launching a unique website that all
buyers to order screening cassettes and v
clips of shows directly from the internel
The company also pioneered an innovat
approach to marketing, introducing port
viewing kiosks that travel to internat
sales markets and can be used to broy
the current Channel Four International
sales catalogue.

VS
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Turnover rose significantly to £7.6 million
[1999: £2.5 million) and Commercial
Development contributed net profit

to Channel 4 of £2.2 million (1999: loss

of £0.3 million).

Music activities expanded beyond licensing
fo include the establishment of Channel 4
Music as an independent record label, which
sold 377,000 CD units in 2000 achieving
income of £1.9 million. The highlight of

the year was the release of the Big Brother
theme which reached number four in the
singles charts, selling 193,000 units.

Channel 4 Video enjoyed its best ever

year with five major releases - Ali G Innit
615,000 units), Trigger Happy TV (235,000],
Ali G, Aiii [261,000], So Graham Norton
63,000) and Queer as Folk 2 (37,000).

Channel 4 Books, an imprint established
in 1998 with Macmillan, passed sales of
29 million books since launch. The biggest

I} e somos o6 T

»The Best of

single publication was the Big Brother
book, which sold 302,000 copies and gave
the imprint its first number one paperback.

In August, Commercial Development set
up the Channel 4 shop, to offer viewers
the opportunity to buy Channel 4
merchandise both online and by phone.
More than 25,000 products have been
sold and orders received from more
than 19,000 customers.

Commercial Development also manages
the provision of premium and non-premium
rate telephone services for programmes.
Again the most notable success was

Big Brother with 20 million calls to the
vote lines during the series. Programmes
as varied as Test Cricket, Collectors Lot
and The Big Breakfast all used premium
rate telephone numbers to provide
competitions, votes and live-to-air services.

ARIBB

Channel Four Television Corporation | 37



AT

- = = = ¥

3 = — - - - - =

‘ = = = T P . U

. p— = . & g e £ =T o SR CWREEEL AT o =
PR, Sm— D— - - S T

S— M- T = B— jomteary e == BryEEs o e T . B

e m—-—_—-—-__mm
=3 dw.ﬂh_ll_ M- o
ORI, - 1 *J‘l'llr-l\_',li-}lll'_“ﬂ_"l-x.l-ﬂl'l—ﬂ-ﬂuﬂb:

_-——-u-r_—_—-cﬂ-———ﬂilr g
“-.....- s vemmy &0 FEERSSEssme .__l -'”‘ﬂ‘:l i

Investment in
education

35% =% 7% — +9%

£70 million in"2000

|- FilmFoups
2| su.s_- i ),

3 mﬁ« Be=|

- |

£

-..=y—-nilm—'-‘uuma &
o 0 ) v Mﬂ‘.’_"s S
e L . o l'.
S 405.000 at 31 December 2000 -
- e R e = .|
—— _ b~ 3

O g s

= T = R




™
|

Pl L = S T e e - ?\q‘]
A DN N N S M N e

mﬂnmmmw Mm“‘h‘ﬂlﬂ

_h T e

_M.H- . B AR R Iy ™

R N R R TS e VT Y B A W P e
w:s.wmm-aﬁ- =) _—
ﬂw R NI S St

. e

B
ﬂm TR
USRS




CARIBBEAN SUMMER

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A SEASON OF PROGRAMMES,
MUSIC AND LIVE CRICKET
FROM JULY 29

Turnover

Group turnover for the year increased by 12% to £716 million
[1999: £642 million]. Of this turnover 91% [1999: 94%)] was
generated by advertising and sponsorship revenue, the remaining
9% represents the increasing contribution from Channel 4’s
other activities.

Profit

The group's operating profit for the year was £33.8 million
[1999: £44.9 million). The reduction year on year of £11.1 million
is as a conseguence of the increased investment in 4 Ventures’
businesses, which increased from £21 million in 1997 to

£30.4 million in 2000.

Advertising and sponsorship

Channel 4's main service performed strongly in 2000, with its
share of total television viewing increased to 10.5% [1999: 10.3%].
Advertising and sponsorship revenue increased by 8% to

£652 million (1999: £600 million).

With its unique sales proposition of quality, targeted
programming, Channel 4 is particularly effective at delivering
those audiences most sought by advertisers. Channel 4 again
registered increases in viewing share of ABC1 adults, 16 to
24-year-olds and light commercial viewers. This success is
reflected in Channel 4's ability to outstrip the industry average
in its delivery of share of impacts - the number of times viewers
see commercials. For ABC1 adults, the share of impacts based
on the all share index was 116, that is 16% better delivery than
the industry average. Similarly, for 16 to 24-year-olds this figure
was 140, up from 131 in 19%9. For the most elusive group, the
light commercial viewers, Channel 4 enjoyed a 36% better delivery
than the industry average.

Channel 4 traded with 962 advertising clients in 2000, a 5%
increase on 1999. Channel 4’s portfolio of websites was utilised
by 62 advertisers in 2000, increasing online advertising revenue
significantly year on year.

Channel 4's programme sponsorship team had another
successful year, with revenues up 30% on 1999. Notable deals
in excess of E1 million included StepStone with Sport on 4,
Southern Comfort sponsoring Big Brother and Renault teaming
up with Channel 4 Drama. Demand for FilmFour channel
sponsorship was also high with new 12-month deals secured
with The Guardian, Stella Artois, Renault and Sony.

Campaign magazine named Channel 4's advertising sales
team the best of any medium in their annual review of the year.
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Programmes

The 8% increase in advertising sales and sponsorship
revenue helped to deliver an 8% rise in the cost of programme
transmissions on the main channel, reaching £423 million for
the year (1999: £391 million).

As detailed on pages 64 to 66, Channel 4 exceeded all of its licence
requirements and transmitted 490 more hours of Channel 4 originatelt
programming than in 1999. Originated programmes accounted
for 66% of the hours of Channel 4's overall output [1999: 60%].
Within peaktime [ pm to 10.30 pm] originated programming
amounted to 81% (1999: 76%]. First run programming amounted
to 62% (1999: 60%)] of our output. During peaktime it represented
82% (1999: 81%).

As in previous years, the continuing consolidation of the independent
production sector has led to a fall in the proportion of qualifying
hours supplied by independent production companies - 66% in 2000
(1999: 76%). Major Channel 4 suppliers who surrendered their
independent status during the year were Ginger Productions, GMG
Endemol, Planet 24, Regent Productions and Talkback Productions

Progress was made towards our 2002 target of 30% of Channel 4%
originated programming being supplied by production companies
from Scotland, Northern Ireland, Wales and the English regions.
In 2000, £102 million of Channel 4's originated programming
was produced by production companies outside of London. This
represented a 20% increase on 1999 and 29% of total originated
programming output in 2000 [1999: 27%).

4 Ventures

Looking forward, all of the main terrestrial broadcasters expect
to see erosion in their share of television advertising revenues
as digital cable and satellite services continue to grow. Faced
with this competition, Channel 4's strategy is to continue its
transformation from a single terrestrial television channel into
a network of media businesses delivered on a range of different
platforms. Key to this will be maintaining the strong main
channel at the centre connecting with the core values of our
viewers whilst leveraging our brand strength to build sustainable
cross-platform media businesses for the future.

The consolidation on 1 January 2001 of our secondary
businesses into 4 Ventures Ltd will provide clear transparency

on the development of those businesses. The performance and
prospects of the key 4 Ventures businesses are described on
pages 28 to 37 of this report. Segmental disclosure of their
performance has been provided within the notes to the
financial statements [notes 1 and 2 on pages 49 and 50).
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5 AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The operating profits/[losses] of the constituent parts of the
4 Ventures businesses were as follows:

2000 1999

£m £m

FilmFour Ltd (3.0] 0.5
FilmFour channel (14.8) (20.4)
E4 (2.1) =
Channel Four Interactive (14.9) (2.3
Channel Four International Ltd 2:2 1.5
Commercial Development 2.2 (0.3)
(30.4) (21.0]

This investment in these businesses amounted to 3% and

&% of group turnover in 1999 and 2000 respectively - a modest
investment to develop businesses to strengthen Channel 4’s
brand, relationship with audiences and competitive position for
the future. With the launch of E4 in 2001, it is planned that this
investment in new businesses will rise to 10% of turnover.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by £5 million to total £29 million.
This increase is due in part to the release in 1999 of a £1 million
provision following the satisfactory conclusion of a claim with a
ouilding contractor, relating to the construction in 1994 of the
Horseferry Road building. Excluding this provision release, the
jear on year increase of £4 million reflects costs incurred in order to

accommodate the development of Channel 4's secondary businesses.

Treasury

Objectives, policies and strategies

Channel 4's treasury management objective is to minimise
currency exposures deriving from its business operations

and maximise returns from available funds without exposing
Channel 4 to unnecessary risk. Channel 4 never takes speculative
positions 1n its treasury management.

This objective is achieved by the use of forward exchange contracts
for foreign currency requirements and fixed rate money market
deposits and borrowings in managing operational funding needs.
These policies have been followed throughout the year and have
been reflected in the financial statements at 31 December 2000,

Al material exposures are considered and managed by the group
ireasury function and reported regularly to management. The
treasury strategies and policies are agreed with the Managing
Director and operate within clear parameters approved by the Board.

Cash deposits and borrowings

Channel 4 funds are deposited only with an agreed list of
organisations that carry an A1/P1 rating by the major credit
rating agencies.

Channel 4 has a £55 million syndicated loan facility with a
maturity date of April 2004. This facility provides financing
flexibility to support the group’s short to medium term
liquidity needs. It was not utilised at 31 December 2000.

The group did not have any significant borrowings at the year
end, although during the year money market borrowings were
undertaken to meet short-term business requirements. The rates
of interest on these borrowings are fixed and based on UK money
market interest rates prevailing at the time of borrowing.

Channel 4 had net cash deposits at 31 December 2000
of £49 million [1999: £44 million].

Overall, there was a net cash inflow in 2000 of £5 million
[1999: £27 million outflow) as shown in note 14 on page 59.

Currency management

Channel 4 buys and sells programmes and films in the
international markets and leases satellite transponder capacity.
As a result, Channel 4 is a net purchaser of both US dollars

and euros. The group has no significant exposure to other foreign
currencies. Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates are managed
by transactions in the forward foreign exchange markets.

Forward foreign currency exchange contracts at 31 December 2000
are detailed in note 18 on page 62.

Taxation

Channel 4 is subject to corporation tax on profits. The tax charge
for 2000 was £14 million, giving an effective rate of 40%. The
effective tax rate has increased above the corporate tax rate due
to disallowable provisions and expenditure, and a prior year charge.

Euro

The Board does not at this stage foresee any significant cost
or impact arising on the operations of the group resulting from
the UK introducing the euro.
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Members

The present members of Channel 4 are listed on page
Since 1 January 2000, the following members have been
> Board:

appointed to, or retired Irc L
Date of appointment

Appointments
Millie Banerjee
lan Ritchie 1 Jan
Peter Bazalgette
Retirement
Frank McGettigan

1 April 2001
Date of retirement

Members' interests
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'F THE MEMBERS

UF THE MEI

Liability insurance
Aliability insurance policy has been effected for members and
officers in respect of their duties.

Employment policy

Channel 4 is an equal opportunities employer and does not
discriminate on grounds of sex, sexual orientation, marital
siatus, race, colour, ethpic origin, disability, age or political

ot religious belief in its recruitment or other employment policies.

The ethos of Channel 4 for both job applicants and staff is that
syeryone matters.

Phannel 4 has established an ethnic monitoring system for
its recruitment and the ethnic composition of its staff. The
representation of ethnic minorities amongst its permanent
staff was 8% (1999: 9%) and women continue to form the
majority of its staff at 56% (1999: 56%).

Channel 4 encourages applications from people with
disabilities. The policy is to recruit, train and provide career
development opportunities to disabled people, whether
tegistered as such or not, on the same basis as that

of other staff.

Employee involvement and consultation

The guality, commitment and effectiveness of Channel 4's

etaff are crucial to its continued success. As noted on page 27,
Channel 4 has continued to invest significantly in its staff through
fraining and development.

During 2000 Channel 4 attained the Investors In People standard.
Ehannel 4 informs and consults with its employees through:

smestings hosted by executive members where staff are
briefed on recent developments and strategic plans.

s reqular departmental meetings where information is
disseminated and staff have an opportunity to air their views.

srecognition of trade unions. A minority of Channel 4's
employees are in membership of one of two recognised
frade unions, BECTU or Equity.

san internal intranet information service available to all
members of staff.

Research and development

Channel 4 devates substantial resources to the development

of scripts and programme outlines for possible commissioning.
Script and programme development expenditure charged to
the profit and loss account in 2000 amounted to £7.0 million
[1999: £6.8 million).

Charitable donations
During 2000 Channel 4 donated £23,778 to charities (1999: £26,008].

Channel 4 website

In keeping with our strategy to connect with viewers across

all platforms, Channel 4 has published this report on its website,
channel4.com. This report has been published in accordance
with applicable UK law and accounting standards governing the
preparation of financial statements within the UK only, and may
differ from legislation relevant within other jurisdictions.

Going concern

Based on normal business planning and control procedures,

the members have a reasonable expectation that Channel 4 has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, the members continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers have been appointed as auditors

by Channel 4 with the approval of the Secretary of State for
Culture, Media and Sport in accordance with the requirements
of paragraph 12(2) of schedule 3 of the Broadcasting Act 1990.

PricewaterhouseCoapers have expressed their willingness to
continue in office.

MICHAEL JACKSON
Chief Executive

9 April 2001
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Channel Four Television Corporation (Channel 4)
We have audited the financial statements which comprise the

profit and loss account, the balance sheet, the cash flow statement,

the statement of total recognised gains and losses and the related
notes which have been prepared under the historical cost convention
[as modified by the revaluation of certain fixed assets] and the
accounting policies set out in the statement of accounting policies.

Respective responsibilities of members and auditors

The members’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and accounting standards are set oul
on page 67.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared
in accordance with the Broadcasting Act 1990 and direction
thereunder by the Secretary of State. We also report to you

if, in our opinion, the report of the members is not cansistent
with the financial statements. if Channel 4 has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding members’ remuneration and
transactions is not disclosed,

We read the other information contained in the annual report
and consider the implications for our report if we become aware
of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with
the financial statements. The other information comprises only
the members’ report, the chairman’s statement, and the
operating and financial review.

We review whether the statement on page 67 reflects Channel 4's
compliance with those provisions of the Combined Code specified
for our review relevant to a statutory corporation and we report
if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the Board's
statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or

to form an opinion of the effectiveness of Channel 4's corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

44 | Channel Four Television Corporation

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made

by the members in the preparation of the financial statements, and |
of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to Channel 4s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary

in arder to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our apinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of Channel 4 and the group at

31 December 2000 and of the profit and cash flows of the
group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Broadcasting Act 1990 and directions
made thereunder by the Secretary of State.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

London

9 April 2001



Turnover
Cost of transmissions and sales

Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Depreciation

Operating profit

Net interest receivable
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Retained profit for the year

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

2000 1999

Notes £m Em
1 716.4 6421

2 (643.1) (564.1]
73.3 78.0

(29.0) (24.4)

7 (10.5) (8.7]
1and 3 33.8 44.9
5 2.0 1.1
35.8 46.0

b (14.3) (13.1]

16 21.5 32.9

All activities are continuing. There is no material difference between the profits reported above and their historical cost equivalents.

Profit for the year
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of buildings

Total recognised gains for the year

The notes on pages 49 to 63 form part of these financial statements.
Report of the Auditors - page 44.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

2000 1999

Notes £m fm
16 215 32.9

7 and 16 5.6 53
271 38.2
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MY GOVERNMENT AND|
RORY BREMNER ON SUNDAY 19 NOVEMBER AT 9PH

AT 31 DECEMBER

Fixed assets

langible assels

Current assets

Stock and work In progress

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Net assets

Profit and loss account

Statutory reserve

Revaluation reserve

VANNI TREVES

Chairman

JANET WALKER

Director of Finance and

Business Affairs

These financial stz

The notes on pages

Report of the Auditors - page 44.
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were approved by the Board of Memb

) to 63 form part of these financial statemer

Motes

on 9 April 2001.

11
14

16

2000
Group
£m

952

219.3
89.5

49.5
358.3

(111.6)

246.7

341.9

(7.4)

334.5

232.8

84.8

16.9
334.5

Group

185.4
78.9
0.1

34.0

308.4

(82.0]

226.4

N E

2000
Channel 4
Em

95.2

169.4
133.3

49.2
351.9

(106.5)
245.4
340.6

(7.4)
333.2
2315

84.8

16.9
333.2



THE RICHARD BLACKWOOD SHOW
STARTS WEDNESDAY 3 MAY AT 11.00PM

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Subsidy paid to ITV

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received
Interest paid

Taxation
UK corporation tax paid
Overseas tax paid

Capital expenditure
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets
Receipts from sales of tangible fixed assets

Net cash inflow/(outflow] before
management of liquid resources

Management of liquid resources
Decrease in short-term investments
Decrease in money market borrowings

Increase/(decrease] in cash in the year

The notes on pages 49 to 63 form part of these financial statements.

Report of the Auditors - page 44.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

2000
Notes £m
14
5 2.0
(13.5)
(0.3)
(11.4)
0.9
14
14
14
14

2000
£m

27.7

27.7

2.0

(13.8)

(10.5)

5.4

10.1

15.5

1999
Em

T2

(0.2)

(14.4)
[0.5]

1999
Em

644
[66.0]

(1.6)

(14.9)

(11.2)

[26.7)

255
(15.8)

(17.0)
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A MAJOR 3 PART SERIES INVESTIGATING THE FORGOTTEN EMOTI
STARTS TUESDAY 15 AUGUST AT 10

Basis of accounting Programme and film rights are stated at direct cost incurred
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical up to the balance sheet date after making provision for expenditure
cost convention, modified by the revaluation of freehold properties. on programmes or films which are unlikely to be transmitted
The financial statements have been prepared in a form as directed or sold. Direct cost is defined as payments made or due to

by the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport with the approval ~ programme suppliers.
of the Treasury and meet the requirements, insofar as they are |
applicable, of the Companies Act 1985 and UK accounting standards.  Research and development expenditure, consisting of funds

spent on projects prior to a final decision being made on whether

Accounting policies a programme will be commissioned, is included in programme

A summary of the more important accounting policies, all of which  and film rights but is fully provided for. Where research and

have been applied consistently, is set out below. development expenditure leads to the commissioning of a
programme, such expenditure is transferred to programme

Basis of consolidation cost and the provision is released.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial

statements for Channel Four Television Corporation and all The cost of programme and film broadcasting rights is wholly

of its subsidiary undertakings and associates made up to written off on first transmission.

31 December 2000,
Fixed assets

Advertising revenue Fixed assets, other than the freehold land and buildings which
Advertising revenue is stated net of advertising agency are shown at valuation, are stated at cost, together with any
commission paid. incidental expenses of acquisition, less depreciation.
Sale of programme and film rights Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost or valuation
Revenue is recognised on contracts for the sale of rights of of the asset evenly, on a straight line basis, over its estimated
completed programmes and films as payments under the useful life from the date of its first utilisation. The annual rates
contracts become due, used for this purpose are as follows:
Deferred tax Freehold buildings 2%
Tax deferred or accelerated is accounted for in respect of all Computer hardware 25% - 50%
material timing differences to the extent that it is probable that Office equipment and fixtures and fittings 25%
a liability or asset will crystallise. Technical equipment 20% - 25%
Foreign currencies Financial Reporting Standard 15, Tangible Fixed Assets, addresses
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are the measurement, valuation and depreciation of tangible fixed
translated into sterling at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet assets. Compliance with this standard has not given rise to any
date or the contracted rate where the underlying exposure has restatement of figures reported in prior periods.
been hedged using a forward exchange contract. Any resultant
gain or loss on exchange is shown as part of the profit for the year. Pensions

Channel 4 maintains a defined benefit pension scheme. Pension
Channel 4 buys and sells programmes and films in the costs are determined by external actuaries and charged against
international markets and leases satellite transponder capacity. profits each year so as to spread the expected cost of pensions
As a result, the group is a net purchaser of both US dollars and over the employees’ warking lives with the group.

euros. Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates are managed
by transactions in the forward foreign exchange markets.The group  Fixed asset investments

does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for financial Fixed asset investments are stated at cost, less any provision
trading purposes. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial for diminution in value.
instruments are not recognised in the financial statements until
these hedged transactions mature. Leases

The rental costs arising from operating leases are charged
Stock and work in progress to the profit and loss account in the year in which they
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. are incurred.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Segmental analysis

Analysis of turnover, operating profit and net assets by activity:

Operating
Turnover profit/[loss) Net assets
2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999
£m £fm £m £m £m £m
Channel 4* 662.1 606.6 71.4 66.8 399.8 3355
4 Learning* 3.4 38 (5.1) (0.6 (5.0] 0.4])
124 Facilities Ltd 4.1 3.9 0.1 0.1 [0.4) [0.5]
4 Ventures
FilmFour Ltd 42.7 32.0 (3.0) 0.5 (2.8) (0.6)
FilmFour channel* 8.8 b (14.8) (20.4) (43.0) (28.2)
B4 - - (2.1) - (2.1) -
Channel Four Interactive* 0.7 - (14.9) (2.3] (17.2) [2.3]
Channel Four International Ltd 22.8 18.6 2.2 155 8.0 b.4
Commercial Development* 7.6 2.5 2i2 (0.3] 0.7 [1.5)
Consolidation adjustments (35.8) (29.7) (2.2) [0.4] (3.5) (1.0]
716.4 6421 33.8 A 334.5 307.4

*The activities identified above make up the constituent parts of Channel Four Television Corporation as at 31 December 2000. The table
above represents these activities under the new group structure, which came into effect on 1 January 2001 [see note 8).

On 1 July 2000 the trade, assets and liabilities of Channel Four Learning Ltd were transferred into 4 Learning, a new division of Channel Four
Television Corporation and the company ceased to trade from that date. The figures for 4 Learning set out in the fable above include the
results for the six manths to 30 June 2000 for Channel Four Learning Ltd and for the six months to 31 December 2000 for 4 Learning.
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ENGLAND V WEST INDE
LIVE FROM 15 JU

2. Cost of transmissions and sales

Programme
costs
£m

2000

Channel 4 423.3
4 Learning =
124 Facilities Ltd &

4 Ventures
FilmFour Ltd
FilmFour channel
E4 -
Channel Four Interactive 2
Channel Four International Ltd -
Commercial Development -

Consolidation adjustments -

433.7

1999

Channel 4 390.6
4 Learning =
124 Facilities Ltd -

4 Ventures

FilmFour Ltd =
FilmFour channel
E4 =
Channel Four Interactive =
Channel Four International Ltd ~
Commercial Development =

Consolidation adjustments -
399.8

Transmitter and

regulatory costs

Analogue Digital
£m £m

29.0 11.5

1.7 4.1

30.7 15.6
29.4 11.4

5.8 3.1
352 14.5

Indirect
programme
costs

£m

48.0
3.3

(1.0
47.3

Cost of Cost of
sales marketing Total
£m £m Em
29.8 16.1 557.7
4.1 0.7 8.1
3.9 0.1 4.0
38.2 8 43.3
0.5 4.7 23.1
0.8 0.1 1.8
- - 15.7
17:7 0.5 18.2
5.4 = 5.4
(33.6) - (34.2)
66.8 . 27.3 643.1
22.2 13.1 511.2
3.2 0.7 39
34 0.1 3.8
247 b2 299
0.5 4.7 243
= - Vi
14.2 0.6 14.8
2.8 = 2.8
27.9] = [28.?_
43.4 23.9 564.1

The consolidation adjustments within the cost of sales disclosure above, and the turnover analysis disclosed in note 1 on page 49,
primarily relate to intra-group sales between Channel 4, FilmFour Ltd and Channel Four International Ltd.
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The UK's
fastestgrowing
News-programme

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ¢ MENTS
3. Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):
2000 1979
£m Em
Depreciation of fixed assets (note 7) 10.5 8.7
Research and development 7.0 6.8
Training 4.6 4.3
Members' remuneration [page 70] 2.3 2:5
Equipment hire 0.4 0.3
Other operating lease rentals 2.9 0.4
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - (0.2) (0.1)

Channel 4 has taken advantage of the legal exemption not to present its own profit and loss account. Of the retained profit after tax of
£21.5 million [1999: £32.9 million) recorded in the consolidated profit and loss account for the year, £24.2 million (1999: £32.3 million]
was dealt with in Channel Four Television Corporation’s accounts,

Fees in respect of services provided by the auditors were:
2000 1999

£000 £000

Statutory audit:
Channel 4 39 38

Subsidiaries and associates 26 26
Pension Plan 5 4
Non-audit fees for other services 373 1,028
443 1,096

4. Employee information

A detailed analysis of members’ remuneration, including salaries and performance-related bonuses, is provided in the report on members’
remuneration on page 70.

2000 1999
Aggregate gross salaries of all employees Em £m
41.0 352

Aggregate gross salaries

Employer’s national insurance contributions 3.8 31
Employer’s pension contributions (note 19] 4.8 3.9
49.6 42.2

Total direct costs of employment
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4. Employee information (continued)

The average number of employees, including executive members, was as follows:

2000 199%
Channel 4
Programme commissioning 200 193
Transmission and engineering 121 123
Advertising and sponsorship sales and research 111 108
Operational management 97 86
Information systems 79 54
Corporate affairs and press office 37 3
4 Learning 35 30
124 Facilities Ltd 33 2
Marketing and creative services 31 i
744 686
4 Ventures
FilmFour Ltd 55 48
FilmFour channel 45 3
E4 14 2
Channel Four Interactive 34 (1
Channel Four International Ltd 25 24
Commercial Development 17 11
190 122
Total employees - B 934 L
Permanent employees 901 Thb
Contract staff 33 62
] — _ B 808
Male 408 358
Female 526 450
= 934 808
Travel, subsistence and hospitality expenditure was as follows:
2000 1999
£000 £000
Members 261 245
Other employees 2,161 2,042
. - — i _ 2422 2,281
Staff loans outstanding at 31 December were as follows:
2000 1999
£000 £000
Season ticket loans 113 114
Other loans = 1
u - 113 121
There were no loans to members.
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5. Net interest receivable

t-term deposits

ans and overdrafts

Net interest receivable

6. Taxation

charge is based an the taxable profit for the year and compris

The taxation

ey

( corporation tax @ 30% (1999: 30.25%)

lief for overseas taxation

7. Tangible fixed assets

Channel 4 and group

Tanaible assets

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2000

hevatuat

At 31 December 2000

Depreciation
At 1 January 2000

for the

At 31 December 2000

Net book value

At 1 January 2000

At 31 December 2000

2000
£m

2.0

2.0 Il

Equipment
and
furniture
Em

Freehold
properties
£m

83.4 62.1 145.5
11:6 11.6
(12.5] [12.6]

1]

:_'J.C

88.9 61.2

19 10.5
(11.9] [11.9]

17 9

89.2

75.0 20.2 95.2
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7. Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Valuation of freehold properties

The net book value of freehold properties shown at cost or valuation comprises:

2000 193¢
Em Em

69.5 667
4.8 3

0.7 08

75.0 713

The property at 76 Charlotte Street accommodates FilmFour Ltd. The other properties are used as permanent location sets for

programme ¢

een revalued they would have been included in the financial statements at the following amounts

If freehold prop had not

2000
£Em £m
67.0
mulated depreciation (8.4])
Net book value based on cost 58.6 600

The freehold property comprising the office, studio and transmission centre at Horseferry Road, London SW1 was valued as at
31 December 2000 by external valuers, Fuller Peiser Property Consultants, in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual
of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The parts of the property occupied by Channel 4 were valued on a depreciated

replacement cost basis. The remainder of the property was valued on the basis of open market value. Attention was drawn to

the fact that the value reported on the depreciated replacement cost basis is in excess of open market value for use of the e
premises as conventional office accommodation, The open market value for the property was £58.2 million [1999: £53.5 million].

T

The property at 76 Charlotte Street was valued as at 31 December 2000 by Fuller Peiser, on the b

erve [note 14

ed to the revaluation ri

5 |

The surplus of £5.6 million [1999: £5.3 million] arising from these revaluations
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QUEER AS FOLK 2

Back with a bang

TUESDAY 15 AND 22 FEB
FIGHTING THE FORCES OF BOREDOM

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Fixed asset investments

The cost of fixed asset investments at 31 December was:

2000 1999

- - B B €000 00D

Subsidiary companies ) 4
Associated companies - - - - - 1 1
10 5

Associated companies

Digital 3 and 4 Ltd

Channel 4 holds 1,000 A class ordinary £1 shares in Digital 3 and 4 Ltd, representing 50% of the share capital. ITV Network Ltd owns
the other 50%. This company. incorporated in England, has been granted a licence by the ITC to operate the Channel 3 and Channel 4
digital terrestrial multiplex. At 31 December 2000, Channel 4's share of the net assets of Digital 3 and 4 Ltd amounted to £1,000.

The company acts as an agent for its shareholders.

British Screen Finance Ltd (British Screen)

In 2000 Channel 4 sold its holding of 1,800,030 ordinary £1 and 1,842,141 B class £1 shares in British Screen [representing 43% of the
ordinary share capital and 39% of the total capital] to the new Film Council for a price of £1. Channel 4 had previously recognised its
share of the accumulated losses of British Screen and this investment was held in the balance sheet at nil value prior to disposal.

Slam Digital Ltd

During the year Channel 4 advanced £0.5 million to Slam Digital Ltd, a new company in which Channel 4 and EMAP plc each own 50%
of the shares. The activities of this company are to develop digital content and applications aimed at the teen market. Channel 4 has
charged in the profit and loss account its advance to this company as development expenditure.

Other fixed asset investments
Channel 4 holds one ordinary £20 share representing 12% of the share capital in the Parliamentary Broadcasting Unit Ltd, a non-profit
making company which provides the television pictures of the sittings of both Houses of Parliament.

During the year Channel 4 acquired:
e at a cost of £1 million, 11.5% of the share capital of Fingertips Ltd - an online personalisation and recommendation service.
Channel 4 has provided for the full cost of this investment within the profit and loss account for the year. In consideration of making

this investment. Channel 4 has acquired an irrevocable royalty free licence to the software which has been written, and which will
be deployed during 2001 on our interactive services.

o for nil cost, 3% of the share capital of PopWorld Ltd - a company developing a website and associated services relating to
popular music.
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8. Fixed asset investments [continued)

Subsidiary undertakings

Channel 4 owns the whole of the issued share capital of the following companies, each of which is incorporated in England:

Trading

4 Ventures Ltd (from 1 January 2001)
Channel Four International Ltd
FilmFour Ltd

124 Facilities Ltd

Channel Four Learning Ltd*

000
000
00
,000

Dormant
E4 Television Ltd 1,

ur Ventures Ltd

acing Ltd

Channel Four Television Company Ltd
Film on Four Ltd

Channel Four Racing Ltd 2
Sport on Four Ltd -

*On 1 July 2000 the business, assets and liabilities of Channel Four Learning Ltd were transferred to 4 Learning, a new division of

Channel Four Television Corporation, and the company ceased trading from that date.

Group restructuring
On 1 January 2001 4 Ventures Ltd became the oper:

Commercial Development, and acquired on that ¢

g company for the FilmFour and E4 channels, Channel Four Interactive and

% of the share capital of FilmFour Ltd and Channel Four International Ltd.

9. Stock and work in progress

2000 1999 2000
Group Channel4  Channel 4
£m £m Em

53.8
49.4
66.2

= 13.1

1es and films completed but not transmitted 68.1 39
programme and film rights 63.5 62.
5 and films in the course of production 87.7 70

2sale = 13

219.3 185.4

s LY o

169.4 138.4

Due to the uncertainty of programme scheduling, certain programme and film rights may not be realised within one year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
10. Debtors
2000 1999 2000 1999
Group Group Channel4 Channel 4
- Em Em £m £m
Trade debtors 77.2 62.3 64.0 54.3
Prepayments and accrued income 12.1 15.0 11.4 10.3
Value added tax 0.2 1.6 0.4 1.5
Amounts due from subsidiaries - = 57.5 491
| . - 89.5 78.9 133.3 115.2
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and interest free.
11. Investments
2000 1999
Channel 4 and group E£m £m
Short-term cash deposits:
Deposited for fewer than three months - - 101
12. Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
2000 1999 2000 1999
Group Group Channel4 Channel 4
£m Em £m Em
Trade creditors 10.5 14.0 10.2 12.4
Accruals 86.7 56.4 80.7 50.8
National insurance 1.6 T2 1:5 1.2
Other creditors 4.9 3.0 3.1 3
Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 2.8 2.0
Corporation tax 7.9 T3 8.2 7.3
111.6 82.0 106.5 75.0

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured and interest free.

Channel 4 aims to work within the guidelines of the Department of Trade & Industry’s Better Payment Practice code, details of which can
be obtained from DTI Publications Orderline, Admail 528, London SW1W 8YT.

Channel 4 endeavours to pay all invoices in accordance with contract terms and, unless agreed payment terms specify otherwise,
within 30 days of the date of the invoice. Any complaints about failure to pay on time should be addressed to the Director of Finance

and Business Affairs, who will ensure that they are investigated and responded to appropriately.

The average number of days to pay suppliers of services other than programmes in 2000 was 27 [1999: 28]. Programme suppliers are
generally paid more quickly as Channel 4's cash advances are usually required promptly to meet production needs.
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A NEW SERIES

STARTS FRIDAY 14 APRIL AT 9.3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. Provisions for liabilities and charges

Provision
Deferred  for rental
taxation deficits Total
Channel 4 and group £m Em £m
At 1 January 2000 4.2 4.0 82
Utilised in the year - (0.2] (0.2)
At 31 December 2000 I s i - - b2 3.8 8.0
Of which:
Amounts falling due within one year - 0.6 0.6
Amounts falling due after oneyear - | - 42 3R 74
Deferred taxation
The amounts of deferred taxation provided and the full potential liability at 31 December were as follows:
2000 1999
£m Em
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 4.2 4.2

No provision has been made in respect of the gain on the revalued properties due to the long-term life of these assets.

Provision for rental deficits
The provision relates to rental deficits on two buildings which Channel 4 no longer occupies in Charlotte Street, London W1. The provision

represents the future net rental commitments to the end of the current leases in 2006 and 2014, based on current market conditions.
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14, Cashflow

Reconciliation of continuing operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2000 99
£m £m
Operating profit 33.8
Depreciation 10.5
Increase in stock and work in progress (33.9) 117.8
[Increasel/decrease in debtors (10.6) 12.0
Increase in creditors and provisions 28.1 6.7
Profit on disposal of fixed assels (0.2) (0.1)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 2 b4.4
Reconciliation of net cashflow to movement in net funds
2000 1999
£m Em
Increase/ldecrease] in cash for the year 15.5 (17.0)
De e in liquid resources (10.1) (25.5]
Decrease in money markel borrowings = 15.8
Increase/ldecreasel in net funds 5.4 (26.7)
Net funds at 1 January 44,1 70.8
Net funds at 31 December 495 441
Analysis of changes in net funds
1 January Cashflow 31 December
2000 2000 2000
£m Em £m
Cash at bank and in hand lcurrent account] 34.0 15:5 49.5
Current assets: investments 10.1 (10.1) -
441 5.4 49.5
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ASEASON OF PROGRAMMES.
R l B N U M M E R MUSIC AND LIVE CRICKET.
FROM JULY 29.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Derivatives and other financial instruments

The currency and interest rate profile of the group’s financial assets and liabilities at 31 December were:
Cash at bank

and in hand Total
2000 1997
£m Em

Currency profile
Sterling 48.0 422
US dollar 1.5 1.9
495 b

These cash deposits at 31 December 2000 were all at floating rates of interest.
The above numbers are stated after taking into account all financial instruments at 31 December 2000.

There were no significant foreign currency denominated short-term debtors and creditors at 31 December 2000 and hence they are
excluded from the above disclosure.

Fair value equates to the book value for Channel 4s assets and liabilities disclosed above.

Gains and losses on hedging contracts
Channel 4 purchases forward foreign exchange contracts (o hedge exposure on commitments in dollars and euros for programme,
film and other purchases. The objective is to minimise the currency fluctuation between the commitment made and the future

purchase price.

The fair value of undelivered forward foreign exchange contracts held at 31 December 2000 was £79.9 million based on redemption value,
There were no significant net unrealised gains or losses on hedging contracts as at the balance sheet date.

Currency exposures on monetary assets and liabilities
As explained in the operating and financial review on page 41, Channel 4's policy is, where practicable, to hedge all material exposures

on monetary assets and liabilities.

Borrowing facilities
Details of Channel 4's UK syndicated loan facility are disclosed in the operating and financial review on page 41.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. Reserves
Profitand  Statutory Revaluation
loss account reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m Em

Group
At 1 January 2000 211.1 84.8 11.5 307.4
Retained profit for the year 21.5 - - 21.5
Surplus on revaluation of property = - 5.6 5.6
Transfer of realised profits 0.2 - (0.2) -
At 31 December 2000 232.8 84.8 16.9 334.5
Channel 4
At 1 January 2000 2071 84.8 4 303.4
Retained profit for the year 24.2 = - 24.2
Surplus on revaluation of property - - 5.6 5.6
Transfer of realised profits 0.2 - (0.2] -
At 31 December 2000 231.5 84.8 16.9 333.2

The statutory reserve was established under the terms of the 1990 Broadcasting Act, as amended by subsequent Parliamentary Orders.
The revaluation reserve arises on the revaluation of freehold property, details of which are disclosed in note 7.

17. Programme and film commitments

At 31 December, Channel 4 had committed future expenditure for programmes and films due for payment as follows:

2000 1999 2000 1999

Group Group Channel4  Channel 4

- B £m Em £m Em
Within one year 235.2 2433 221.0 224.5
After one year 210.0 137.6 209.8 137.4

445.2 380.9 430.8 361.9
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18. Other commitments
2000 1999
Capital expenditure

Channel 4 and

Amounts cor

ot provided for in the financial statements

Armol r expenditure but not contracted at

Forward foreign exchange contracts
At 31 December 2000, Channel 4 had entered into commitments

er to fix tf

.4 million], maturing th

ygramme and film purchase

Digital 3 and 4 Ltd

Under the terms of the

committed to mr

F18 million annur

t upon the time &

| be depenaen
to amount to £10 million per annum

Operating lease commitments

At 31 December the group had annual commitments under operating leases - all of which were for land and buildings - as se

2000
£m
0.8 1.3
0.2
3.6

4.6 4.7
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19. Pension costs

Channel 4 operates a contributary pension scheme providing benefits based on final pay. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of Channel 4, being invested through Legal & General Assurance [Pensions Management) Ltd. Contributions to the scheme
are charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees working lives with Channel 4.

The contributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit method. The most
recent independent valuation was as at 31 December 1999. The assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results

of the valuation are those relating to the rate of return on investments and the rates of increase in salaries and pension. It has been
Jesumed that investrnent returns will outstrip salary increases by 1.75% per annum and that present and future pensions will increase

at the rate of 3.75% per annum.

The pension charge for 2000 was £4.8 million [1999: £3.9 million).

The actuarial valuation at December 1999 showed that the market value of the scheme's assets was £74 million and that the actuarial
value of those assets represented 118% of the benefits which had accrued to members, after allowing for expected future increases
in earnings. The contributions of Channel 4 and employees remain al 15.3% and 6% of earnings respectively.

20. Related party transactions

Details of transactions in which members have an interest are disclosed on page 42.

Details of arrangements with associated companies are disclosed in notes 8 and 18.

Channel Four Television Corporation | 63




Channel 4 commissions programmes from a wide range of suppliers, including independent producers and the ITV companies and
purchases programmes in the international markets.

Independent production companies are the most important source of originated programmes. 391 independent companies
provided programmes transmitted on Channel 4 in 2000 [1999: 412). This reduction in independent producers supplying
programmes to Channel 4 has been caused in part by consolidation within the independent production sector and the
acquisition of sore of those companies by television broadcasters, which results in a loss of independent producer status.

The source and cost of the programmes transmitted on Channel 4 in 2000 are shown in the table below:

2000 1999 2000
Hours Hours £m
Originated
Independents 3,638 3,785 226.5
Other 2,132 1,495 118.5
5,770 5,280 345.0
Acquired 3,014 3,480 78.3
Total 8,784 8.760 423.3
Source of programmes as a percentage Source of programmes as a percentage
of total transmission hours of peak transmissions (6 pm to 10.30 pm)

2000 2000

W) Originated 66% Acquired  34% ®) Originated 81% dAcquired  19%
d
|
[ |
|I

| 9

l#

1999 1999

) Originated 60% J Acquired  40% 2) Originated 76% HAcquired  24%
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A season of film
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PROGRAMMES AND THE LICENCE

Channel 4 broadcast 8,784 hours in 2000 - 24 hours each day. The hours and costs of the channel's wide range of programme
transmissions were as follows:

Channel 4 main service: hours and costs of programmes

2000 1999 2000 1999

Hours Hours £m Em

Drama 1,001 936 92.4 78.1
Entertainment 1,702 1,537 88.8 82.1
Education 1,000 915 61.6 60.0
Sport 1,036 883 36.3 26.1
Feature films 1,100 1,356 28.2 28.8
Other factual 467 521 20.7 175
News 305 300 19:2 19.1
Current affairs 247 234 17.6 17.8
Documentaries 310 385 14.2 15.1
Arts and music 247 278 13.0 14.0
Multicultural 231 218 1.4 12.6
Quiz and gameshows 345 309 8.5 8.2
Children 721 819 6.7 75
Religion 72 69 4.7 a
8,784 8,760 423.3 390.6

Annual performance review
The ITC’s review of Channel 4's performance in 2000 states:

‘Channel 4 both built its audience in 2000 and delivered its remit for diverse and distinctive programmes. There were landmark series
in a number of programme genres, including drama (Longitude and Never Never for example), education (Elizabeth], multicultural
(the Untold season) and comedy [the surreal Jam and the Black Books sitcom].’

FilmFour channel
The FilmFour channel broadcast for 4,456 hours in 2000 (1999: 4,337) with 53% of these hours being subtitled.

E4

E4 did not commence broadcasting until 18 January 2001 and accordingly no programme cost in respect of the E4 service was charged
to the profit and loss account during 2000.
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Gritty and real doesn’t have to be grim and ugly.

Channel 4 main service: the licence

The wide range and diversity of programmes shows that the remit is central to Channel 4's pragramming policy. The channel takes
pride and pleasure in the challenge of fulfilling it in different ways each year. Our licence from the ITC, in addition to stipulating the
need to meet the remit, places certain specific programme obligations on Channel 4.

Principal licence requirements

Compliance

minimum 2000 1999
Average hours per week
Education 7 1 10
News 4 5 5
Current affairs 4 5 4
Multicultural 3 4 4
Religion 1 1 ]
Hours per year
Schools 330 380 396
Percentage
Original production
- overall 60 b6 60
- in peaktime (6 pm to 10.30 pm) 70 81 76
First run
— overall 60 62 60
—in peaktime 80 82 81
Independent production® 25 66 76
European independent production® 10 41 42
European origin 50 70 65
Subtitling for the deaf and hard-of-hearing 60 69 42
Production expenditure outside Londen 30 (by 2002) 29 27 |
Training and development (% of qualifying revenue) 0.5 0.7 0.7

*There are material differences in the definitions contained in the European and UK legislation for qualifying independent production.

ITC

The ITC monitors compliance with broadcasters’ licence obligations [including compliance with its regulatory codes] and entertains
complaints about programmes. The ITC recorded 11 breaches of its code by Channel 4 in 2000 [1999: six), but none was judged
serious enough to merit a sanction.

Broadcasting Standards Commission
The Broadcasting Standards Coammission entertains complaints:

« about unfair treatment and/or infringement of privacy. In 2000, no complaints about Channel 4's programmes were upheld (1999: four]
and two were partially upheld [1999: nonel.

« concerning standards of taste and decency, and in 2000 six were upheld [1999: 15] and six partially upheld (1999: ninel.
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Channel 4 is committed to high standards of corporate governance
throughout the group.

Channel 4's corporate governance procedures, adopted by the
Board, have been designed to enable the group to comply with the
Combined Code and the Turnbull Working Party recommendations.
These procedures define the duties, constitution and responsibilities
of the Board and the various Board committees.

The Board has full responsibility for maintaining high standards
of corporate governance. The information and statements below
describe how the principles identified in the Combined Code and the
Turnbull Working Party recommendations, relevant to a statutory
corporation without shareholders, were applied by Channel 4.

Statement of compliance

The Board believes that the group has, throughout the accounting
period, complied with the provisions set out in Section 1 of the
Combined Code except that, given its constitution, Channel 4
cannot sensibly have a formal nomination committee. However,
the following formal nomination procedures are In place:

* non-executive members are appointed for fixed terms by the
ITC following consultation with Channel 4's Chairman and the
approval of the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport.

» the Chief Executive is appointed by the Board.

s other executive members are appointed to the Board after

nomination by the Chief Executive and the Chairman acting jointly.

The Board

The members, who constitute the Board, have full responsibility
for ensuring that, in a changing public service and commercial
broadcasting environment, the statutory functions of Channel 4
are discharged in accordance with the broadcasting licence issued
by the ITC and policies regulated by the Board and in accordance
with arrangements and procedures which have, to the extent
required, the approval of the ITC.

The Board meets reqularly and consists of between 13 and 15
members of whom the majority are independent non-executives.
It has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it for decision
and information is supplied to it in a timely manner. The roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive are separate with a clear division
of responsibilities between them. The division of these roles

and the presence of a non-executive Deputy Chairman as senior
independent director ensure there is a strong independent element
to the Board and no one individual has unfettered powers of
decision. All other non-executive members are of equal standing.
Biographical details of the present members are given on page 74.

The non-executive members carry significant weight in Board
decisions. They bring an independent judgement to bear on
issues of strategy, performance and resources.

On appointment, all members are advised that they have
access to advice and the services of the Corporation Secretary
and, additionally, that they are entitled to seek independent
professional advice in the furtherance of their duties, if necessary,
at Channel 4's expense.

As a statutory corporation certain principles and provisions

of the Combined Code in respect of relations with shareholders
are not directly applicable. However, for those principles and
provisions disclosed in Section C of the Combined Code that
are relevant to Channel 4, the following procedures are in place:

the ITC publishes an annual review of Channel 4's
performance and compliance with the provisions
as laid out in the broadcast licence.

 Channel 4's annual report is sent to the Secretary of State
who lays copies of it before each House of Parliament.

e the terms of employment of the executive members are
subject to the approval of the remuneration committee.

Statement of members’ responsibilities

Channel 4 is required by the Broadcasting Act 1990 to keep
proper accounts and proper records in relation to the accounts,
and to prepare financial statements in respect of each financial
year in a form as directed by the Secretary of State for Culture,
Media and Sport with the approval of the Treasury. The members
therefore prepare financial statements in compliance with this
direction and, to the extent applicable, with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1985, and accounting standards currently in force,
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Channel 4
and the group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit
or loss of the group for that year.

The members confirm that suitable accounting policies have
been used and applied consistently and reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates have been made in the preparation
of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2000.
The members also confirm that applicable accounting standards
have been followed and that the financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis.

The members are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for taking reasonable steps to safequard the assets
of Channel 4 and the group, and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities.
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Board committees
The Board has established the following three committees which
each meel at least once every year;

Audit committee
The audit committee’s purpose is:

« to satisfy itself on all matters of financial propriety
and procedure.

e to review the scope, results and cost effectiveness of
the audit, the objectivity and independence of the auditors,
and additionally the nature, extent and value for money
of non-audit services supplied by the auditors.

 to discuss with Channel 4's external auditors any matters
of concern arising out of their audit.

e to review the draft annual report and financial statements
before presentation to the full Board.

* to monitor and ensure compliance with the Turnbull Working
Party’s guidance on internal control.

* to review Channel 4's continuous efficiency project which
seeks to ensure that the group is incurring only appropriate
expenditure and is obtaining full value for services provided.

Three non-executive members, Vanni Treves [Chairman],
Joe Sinyor and Robin Miller, form the membership of the
audit committee.

At the Chairman’s invitation, Michael Jackson, David Scott,
Janet Walker and the PricewaterhouseCoopers audit partner
attend meetings of the committee. The audit partner has direct
access to the Chairman at all times.

Budget committee

The budget committee’s purpose is to examine and discuss the
details of the group's annual budget and any other significant
financial matters which the full Board may wish to refer to the
budget committee for detailed consideration.

The budget committee has six members: Vanni Treves [Chairman),
Michael Jackson, David Scott, Janet Walker, Joe Sinyor and
Robin Miller.

The budget committee reports to the Board, which retains the
right of approval of the annual budget and business plan.
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Remuneration committee
The remuneration committee's purpose is to approve, in relation
to the employees of Channel 4 and its subsidiary companies:

« the level of any general salary increases.
= merit or market rate increases for individuals.

* the group’s pension fund arrangements and related
employee benefits.

Fees payable to the non-executive Board members are
determined by the ITC.

The remuneration committee consists entirely of non-executive
members. Its members are Vanni Treves [Chairman],

Andrew Graham, Barry Cox and Robin Miller. Michael Jackson,
David Scott and Janet Walker attend meetings as appropriate.

No executive member attends meetings of the remuneration
committee at times when any aspect of his or her remuneration
or terms of employment are being discussed. The report on
members remuneration is provided on pages 70 and 71.

Pension plan

There are six trustees of the Channel 4 Pension Plan who

meet with the Plan’s investment managers, Legal & General
Assurance [Pensions Management| Ltd, several times each year.
The Chairman of the trustees is Vanni Treves. The trustees include
an independent member, Louise Botting; two of Channel 4’
executives, David Scott and Peter Meier; and two employee
representatives, Andrew Brenson and Julie Bunn.

Reporting

The Board believes that the 2000 report and financial statements
present a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Channel 4
and the group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit
of the group for that year.

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for Channel 4's system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness whilst the role
of management is to implement Board policies on risk and control.
The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the achievement of business objectives.
In pursuit of these objectives, internal controls can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The key procedures that the Board has
established can be summarised under the following headings:
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Remuneration policy for executive members of the Board

The remuneration of executive Board members is determined
by the remuneration committee, the membership and terms

of reference of which are detailed on page 68. In framing its
remuneration policy, the committee has given full consideration
to the best practice provisions of the Combined Code.

Channel 4 aims to attract, motivate, and retain high calibre
staff and executive Board members by rewarding them with
competitive salary and benefit packages. These are established
by reference to those salaries and benefit packages prevailing
for executives of comparable status elsewhere in the television
industry (albeit without any of the share option schemes
available elsewhere].

Any bonus payments made to executives are based on
performance and recommended and approved by the
remuneration committee.

Andy Barnes participates in the advertising sales bonus scheme,

which is linked to advertising revenue targets. These targets are

Executive members
Michael Jackson
David Scott

Andy Barnes

David Brook

Tim Gardam

Janet Walker

Non-executive members
Vanni Treves

Barry Cox

Andrew Graham

Robin Miller

Joe Sinyor

Millie Banerjee

lan Ritchie

Retired members
Frank McGettigan
Murray Grigor
Usha Prashar
Sarah Radclyffe

agreed by the remuneration cormmittee before the start of each
financial year.

Service contracts
Each of the six executive members has a service contract
subject to one year's notice.

Taxable benefits

Executive members are eligible for a range of taxable benefits
which include the provision of a company car and payment

of its operating expenses; membership of a private medical
insurance scheme, which is apen to all staff; and the provision
of a television and video for home use. These benefits are

not pensionable.

Remuneration policy for non-executive members of the Board
The ITC appoints non-executive Board members for fixed terms
and determines their fees. They are entitled to the provision

of a television and video for home use, and to reimbursement

of travelling and accommodation expenses incurred in connection

with attending Board meetings.

2000 2000 2000 2000 1999
Salary and fees Bonus Benefits Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
476 45 15 536 494
333 30 17 380 357
242 19 15 376 385
242 30 15 287 269
225 25 12 262 227
231 25 1 257 221
62 = - 62 61
19 = = 19 17
15 - - 15 14
15 - = 15 13
15 - = 15 14
15 = = 15 -
15 = = 15 -
17 - - 17 223

- - - - 14

- - = = 14

- - - - 14
1,922 274 75 2,271 233/

Frank McGettigan left the company on 31 January 2000. Full disclosure of the £206,000 compensation received by him for loss

of office was made in the report for 1999.
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Pension

Executive members are eligible for membership of the Channel 4
Pension Plan on the same basis as all other members of staff.
The plan is contributory, at 6% of pensionable salary, and
provides members with a pension based on 1/50th of final
pensionable pay for each year of service up to a maximum

of two thirds of final pensionable earnings.

Non-executive members are not eligible for membership of the
Channel 4 Pension Plan.

The executive members of the plan during 2000 were as follows:

Michael Jackson
David Scott
Andy Barnes
David Brook
Tim Gardam
Janet Walker

« the pension entitlement shown is that which would be paid
annually on retirement from the age of 60 but based on service
to the end of 2000.

» the increase in accrued pension during the year excludes
any increase for inflation.

* the accrued benefits for Michael Jackson, Andy Barnes,
David Brook, Tim Gardam and Janet Walker, each of whom
joined the scheme after June 1989, have been restricted
as a result of the impact of the Inland Revenue's 1989
‘earnings cap’.

* members who are not subject to the earnings cap have the
option to pay Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs] to a
separate scheme. Neither the AVCs made nor the resulting
benefits accrued have been included in the above table.

The benefits provided to all members of the Channel 4 Staff
Pension Plan are as follows:

= normal retirement age is 60.

« there is a spouse’s pension of one half of a scheme member's
pension in the event of death in retirernent and of one half

Increase in Total accrued

accrued pension

Month Members’ pension  entitlement at

of start contributions entitlement 31 December

of pensionable  during 2000 during 2000 2000
service £000 - £000 £000

July 1997 9 3 1
November 1981 20 12 125
December 1991 g 2 63
December 1997 9 5 9
January 1999 9 5 ]
May 1998 g 3 8

of a scheme member’s present expected pension in the event
of death in service. There is an additional benefit equal to one
half of the benefit payable to the spouse in respect of each child
up to the age of 18, or 23 if in full time education, subject to a
maximum of two children.

* pensions in course of payment, in excess of the Guaranteed
Minimum Pension, increase at 5% per annum compound,
or the increase in the retail prices index if lower.

+ scheme members who leave before completing two years’
service receive a refund of their own contributions. Scheme
members who leave having completed at least two years’
service receive a benefit fram normal retirement date preserved
within the scheme, calculated as above, but relating to
pensionable service and pensionable earnings up to date
of leaving.

an early retirement option exists from the age of 50. Any scheme
member taking an early retirement option receives a pension at
a discounted rate.

there is a provision for a member to exchange part of the
retirement pension for cash.
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HISTORICAL RECORD

Profit and loss account

For the year ended 31 December 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

£m Em Em £m Em £m Em Em
Turnover 343.9 408.4 464.0 518.6 552.7 590.5 642.1 716.4
Cost of transmissions and sales [278.4] (285.7] (309.0) (358.1] [406.9) (467 4] (564.1) (643.1)
Gross profit 65.5 12257 155.0 160.5 145.8 1231 78.0 73.3
Administrative expenses [15.4) [17.1) [19.1) [20.6) (21.2) [25.7) (24.4) (29.0]
Depreciation [5.7) 18.4) (7.7) (7.6) (7.9) (8.9) (8.7) (10.5)
Exceptional relocation expenses - (9.4] - - - - - =
Operating profit 444 87.8 128.2 132.3 116.7 88.5 44.9 33.8
Net interest (5.5) (4.2] (0.1) 2.0 2.4 38 1.1 20
Profit before ITV subsidy and taxation 38.9 83.6 128.1 134.3 119.1 92:3 460 35.8
Subsidy payable to ITV (38.2) (57.3] [74.0) [87.1) (89.9] (66.0) - -
Profit before taxation 0.7 26.3 54.1 472 29.2 26.3 46.0 35.8
Taxation 0.6 (4.4) (19.3) (17.9) [10.7] (8.6] (13.1) (14.3)
Retained profit for the year 1.3 21.9 34.8 29.3 18.5 17.7 32.9 215
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Advertising and sponsorship revenue

Channel 4
ITV, GMTV, S4C and Channel 5

Channel 4
ITV, GMTV, S4C and Channel 5
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BBC 1

BBC 2

[TV and GMTV

Channel 4 and S4C
h

Channel 5

Satellite and cable

source: BARB all individuals

1.613.2

1993

Em

330.1
14831

7

%

18.2
81.8

100.0

1993

327
10.2
40.0
11.0
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1994

Em
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32.4
10.6
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g
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448.0
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100.0

%
21.8
78.2

100.0

1996

325
11.5
35.1
10.7

10.2

100.0

1997 1998 1999 2000
Em Em Em £m

651.7
2,315.7

2,967.4

6005

2176.9

27774

% % %o %

’1.5 21.7 21.6 22.0
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Non-executive members

Chairman

Vanni Treves lage 60)

Appointed Chairman in January 1998. His appointment
runs to the end of 2001. He is a partner in the City solicitors,
Macfarlanes, and Chairman of The Equitable Life Assurance
Society and of the London Business School.

Deputy Chairman

Barry Cox [age 58]

Appointed Deputy Chairman in February 1999. His
appointment runs until 31 January 2003. He is a former
director of the ITV Association. He is a consultant with ITN
and United Broadcasting and Entertainment and chairs the
Advisory Board on DTT Frequency Planning.

Millie Banerjee (age 53]

Joined the Board in January 2000. Her appointment runs
until the end of 2003. She is an independent consultant in
the telecommunications field, non-executive director of the
management Board of the Cabinet Office and a member of
the Nurses Pay Review Board.

Peter Bazalgette (age 47)

Joined the Board on 1 April 2001. His appointment runs
until 31 March 2004. He is creative director of Endemol
Entertainment UK Ltd and a non-executive director of
Brighter Pictures Ltd, Victoria Real Ltd and Zeppotron Ltd.

Andrew Graham [age 58]

Joined the Board in April 1998. His appointment runs until
31 March 2004. He is Acting Master and Master Elect of
Balliol College, Oxford

Robin Miller [age 40

Joined the Board in February 1999. His appointment runs until
31 January 2003. He is Chairman of EMAP plc, and a director
of the Horserace Totalisator Board and the Moss Bros Group.

lan Ritchie [age 50

Joined the Board in January 2000. His appointment runs
until the end of 2003. He is the non-executive Chairman of
four technology start-up companies and serves on the board
of Scottish Enterprise

Joe Sinyor [age 43]

Joined the Board in April 1998, His appointment runs until
31 March 2002. He is Chief Executive, Newspapers, for
Trinity Mirror plc.
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Executive members

Michael Jackson [age 42]

Chief Executive since July 1997. He is Chairman of 4 Ventures Ltd
and FilmFour Ltd and a non-executive director of EMI Group.
Prior to joining Channel 4 he was an independent producer
(1981 to 1989); with the BBC as editor of The Late Show [1989);
Head of Music and Arts [1991]; Controller of BBC 2 [1993]; and
Director of Television and Controller of BBC 1 [1996].

David Scott FCA [age 4é)

Managing Director since January 1997, having been Director
of Finance since 1988, He is Chairman of Go Racing Ltd and
124 Facilities Ltd, Deputy Chairman of FilmFour Ltd, a director
of 4 Ventures Ltd and a member of the British Screen Advisory
Council. He joined Channel 4 as Controller of Finance in 1981.
Prior to that he was with Peat Marwick Mitchell (1972 to 1981].

Andy Barnes (age 45|

Commercial Director since July 1997. He is a director of
British Audience Research Bureau Ltd [BARB). He joined
Channel 4 in 1991 as Head of Advertising Sales. Prior to that
he was Deputy Sales Director of TVS.

David Brook lage 40]

Director of Strategy and Development since November 1997 and a
director of 4 Ventures Ltd. Prior to joining Channel 4 he was Director
of Marketing and Communications at Channel 5 (1996 to 1997) and
Marketing Director at the Guardian Media Group (1990 to 1996].

Tim Gardam [age 44]

Director of Programmes since December 1998. He is Chairman
of Channel Four International Ltd, and a director of 4 Ventures Ltd.
Prior to joining Channel 4 he was Controller, News and Current
Affairs and Documentaries for Channel 5 (1996 to 1998] and
Head of Current Affairs for the BBC (1993 to 1996). He is a former
Editor of Newsnight and Panorama and Executive Producer

of Timewatch.

Janet Walker ACA [age 47

Director of Finance and Business Affairs since April 1998. She is
a director of Channel Four International Ltd and 4 Ventures Ltd,
and a governor of the National Film and Television School. She
was Deputy Director of Finance at Channel 4 between 1990 and
1994, Financial Controller, BBC Regional Broadcasting (1994 to
1996) and Finance Director of Granada Media Group (1996 to 1798].

Secretary
Andrew Brann

The ages shown above are at 31 December 2000.
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Channel Four Television Corporation
124 Horseferry Road London SWI1P 2TX

Telephone 020 7396 4444
Facsimile 020 7306 8347
Website www.channel4.com

Regional and national editorial office

227 West George Street Glasgow G2 2ND

Telephone 0141 568 7100
Facsimile 0141 568 7103

Viewers' enquiries

lelephone 020 7306 8333
E-mail viewersenguiries(dchannel4.co.uk
Facsimile 020 7306 8347
FilmFour subscriber hotline

Telephone 0800 44 1234
Website www.filmfour.com
Belfast

Elmwood House 46 Elmwood Avenue Belfast BT 6AZ

Telephone 028 9068 1311
Facsimile 028 9068 1317
Dublin

Media Link 15 Windsor Place loff Pembroke Street] Dublin 2

Telephone 00 353 1 6622 444
Facsimile 00 353 1 6614 989
Edinburgh

Hudson House 8 Albany Street Edinburgh EH1 30B

Telephone 0131 473 2322
Facsimile 0131 473 2327
Manchester

Colwyn Chambers 19 York Street Manchester M2 3BA

Telephone 0161 237 5796
Facsimile 0161 237 3797

Sheppard Day
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